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Hallmark General Insurance Company Ltd
Directors' report
31 December 2015

The diractors present their report together with the financial statemenis of Halimark General Insurance Company
Ltd {the Company} for the vear ended 31 December 2015 and the auditor's report thereon.

Directors
The follewing persons were directors of the Companiy at any time during the financial year and up to the date of
this report:

JoAnne Maree Stephenson (Chairman)
Duncan Gerald West

Rachei Emma Cobb

Anna Elizabeth Gladman

Christopher Paul Knoblanche

Principal activitios
The principal activity of the Company during the year was that of a general insurer, operating both in Australia
and New Zealand. Thera has baen no significant change in the nature of this activity during the year.

Revlew of operations
Total comprehensive income of the Company was $14,673,000 (2014; $18,689,000).

This result was driven by a decline in premium revenue of $2,128,000 across all channels in Australia and New
Zealand. [nvestment income has decreased by $3,474,000 impacted by lower investment holdings and ylelds.
The overall decline in income was offset by a decrease in underwriting expenses of $2,5966,000.

Significant changes In the state of affairs

On 192 March 2015, KVD Australia Pty Ltd entered intc a share sale agreemant with GE Capital Finance
Australasia Ply Lid, fo purchase 100% share capital of GE Capital Australia Holdings Pty Lid and indirectly its six
subsidiaries. The sale was executed on 24 November 2015 following regulatory approval. The subsidiaries
acquired include Hallmark Life Insurance Company Ltd and Hallmark General Insurance Company Lid.

Dividends :
No dividends were paid or daclared by the Company in respect of the financial year 31 Dacember 2015 {2014:
$103,000,000).

Matters subsequent to the end of the financial year
No maiter or circumstance has arisen since 31 December 2015 that has significantly affected, or may
significantly affact:

{a) the Company's pperations;
(b} the results of those operations; or
{c)} the Company's stale of affairs.

Likely developments and expected results of operations
The Company will continue to operate in its existing business, being General Insurance, in the next financial year.

Environmental regulation

The Company's operations are subject to environmental regulations under Commonweslth and State legisiation.

The board believes the Company has adequate systems in place for the management of its environmental

oct::igatluns, and is not aware of any material breach of those environmental obligations as they apply to the
mpany.



Hallmark General Insurance Company Ltd
Directors’ report

31 December 2015

(continued}

Indemntiication and insurance of offlcers and auditors
Indemnification

Mandatory indemnification and legal costs

To the maximum extent parmitted by taw, the Company:

(a) shall indemnify any current or former officer of the Company who was or is made or is threatened o be
mada a party or is otherwise involved in any procaading by reason of the fact he or she Is or was an
officer of the Compeny against all fiability and loss suffered and expenses reasonably incurred by that
officer (except a lizbility for legal costs); and

(b) shall indemnify an officer against legal costs incurred by that officer in defending any proceeding for
which that officer is entitled to be Indemnified pursuant fo {a) above, in advance of its final disposition
provided however that such payment of legal costs shall only be made In advance of final disposition of
the proceeding upon receipt of an undertaking by the officer to repay all amounts advanced if it should
be ultimately determined that the officer is not entitled to be indemnified

Pormissive indemnification and legal costs
To the maximum extant permitied by taw, the Company:

(a) may indemnify any person who is not an officer of the Company (non-officer) against any lability or loss
incurred by that non-officer in their performance of, or in connection with, the role undertaken by them for
or on behalf of the Company (except & liability for lagal costs); and

{b) may indemnify a non-ofiicer against legal costs incurred by that non-officer in defending any proceeding
for which such non-officer is entitled to be Indemnifiad pursuant to (a) above, in advance of its final
dispesition provided however that, fo the extent required by law, such payment of legal costs shall anly
be made in advance of final disposition of the proceeding upon receipt of an undertaking by the
non-cfficer to repay all amounts advanced if it should he ultimately defermined that the non-officer is not
entitied to be Indemnified.

Any such permissive indemnity must be evidenced by way of written agreement by any officer designated by the
board of directors for such purpese,

Insurance

During the financial year ended 31 December 2015 General Electic Company has paid premiums on behalf of
the Company in respect of directors’ and cfficers’ liability insurance (non-indemnifiable coverage only) in respect
of the period up to 24th November 2015,

Subsequently, the ultimate parent entity, KVD Ausiralia Holdco Pty Ltd, has agreed to pay premiums on behalf of
the Company, in respedt of directors’ and officers’ liabllity insurance {non-indemnifiable coverage cnly) in respect
of the period ending 25 November 2016,

Such Insurance pelicies Insure directors and officers against certain limited liabilities.

Directors have not included detalls of the nature of the liabilities covered or the amount of the premium paid as
such disclosure is prohibited under the terms of the insurance policy.

The Company has not during or since the end of the financial year paid or agreed to pay any premiums in respect
of any person who has been an auditor of the Company for the purposes of indemnifying them against any claims
by third parties arising from their audit report.



Hallmark General Insurance Company Ltd
Directors' report

21 Dacember 2015

{continued}

Proceedings on behalf of the company .

Ne person has applied to the Court under sectlon 237 of the Corporalions Act 2001 for leave to bring
proceedings on behalf of the Company, or to intervene in any praceedings to which the Company is a party, for
the purpose of iaking responsibility on behalf of the Company for all or part of those proceedings.

No proceedings have been brought or intervened in on behalf of the Company with leave of the Court under
section 237 of the Corporations Act 2001.

Lead Auditor's independence declaration
The lead auditor's indepsndence declaration is reguired under section 307C of the Corporations Act 2007, forms
part of the directors’ report for the year anded 31 December 2015 and is set out on page 4.

Rounding of amounts
The Company is of a kind referred to In ASIC Class Order 98100 dated 10 July 1898 {as amended) and in

accordance with that class order, amounts in this repert and the accompanying financlal staterents have been
rounded to the nearest thousand dollars unless otherwise Indicated.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of directors.

ne Maree Stephenson (Chairman)
Director

Sydney

17 March 2016

Z

Anna Elizabeth Gladman {Managing Director)
Director

Sydney
17 March 2016
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Lead Auditor’s Independence Declaration under Section 307C of the Corporations Act 2001
To: the Directors of Hallmark General Insurance Company Ltd

I deciare that, to the best of my knowledge and belief, in relation to the audit for the financial
year ended 31 December 2015 there have been:

(i) no contraventions of the auditor independence requirements as set out in the
Corporations Act 2001 in relation to the andit; and

(ii) no contraventions of any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the
audit.

Ken 4,
KPMG

p—

Andrew Reeves
Partner

Sydney
17 March 2016

KPMG, an Australian partnership and a membser

firm of the KPMG network of indepandent member

firmg affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative  Liability limited by & scheme approved under
CKPMG International™, a Swiss enthy. Prefessional Standsrds Legislation,



Hallmark General Insurance Company Lid
Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
For the year endaed 31 Dacember 2015

2015 2014
Notes $'000 $'000

Insurance premium revenue 81,165 63,373
Outwards reinsurance premium revenue/{expense) 37 {42)
Net insurance premium revenue 1(a) 61,202 63,331
Claims expenses 12,203 12,040
Net claims incurred 1{b} 12,203 12,040
Acquisition costs : 12,327 12,2565
Administration expenses 20,050 23,018
Underwriting expenses 32,377 35273
Underwriting result 16,622 16,018
Invasiment income (e} 4,363 7.837
Investment expenses {214} {406}
Other {expenses)incoms {52) 538
Profit before income tax 1{d) 20,719 23,987
income tax expense 1(e) 5,605 5,566
Profit for the year 15,114 18,421
Other comprehensive Income
ltems that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations (441) 268
Total ltems that may be raclassified subsequently to profit or
loss (441) 268
Gther comprehensive income for the year, net of tax (441) 268
Total comprehensive income for the year 14,673 18,688
FProfit Is attributable to:

Owners of Hallmark Gereral Insurance Company Lid 15,114 18421

15,114 18,421

Total comprahensive ingcome for the year Is attributable to:

Owners of Hallmark General Insurance Company Ltd 14,673 18,689

14,673 18,689

The above Statement of Proiitt or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income should be read in conjunction with the
accompanying notes. .
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Hallmark General Insurance Company Lid
Statement of Financial Posltion
As at 31 December 2015

2015 2014
Notes $'000 £'000
ASSETS
Current assets :
Cash and cash equivalents 2{a) 172,644 170,517
Trade and other receivables 2(b) 954 1,389
Current {ax assets 18 -
Deferred acquisition costs 2{c) 7,541 9,486
Total current assets 181,157 181,402
Non-current assets
Defarred acquisition costs 2{c) 7,236 8,756
Deferred tax assets 3{a) 1,060 1.531
Total non-current assets 8,286 10,287
Total assets 189,453 191,689
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 2(d) 348 1,299
Current tax liabtlities . - 636
Provigions 3{b) 864 828
Unearned commission income 2(e) - 2
Ouistanding claims liabflity 2() 8,509 9,034
Unsarred premium liability 2(g) 36,143 44,379
Total current liabilities 48 862 56,178
Non-current liabilities
Trade and other payables 2(d) F&! 359
Provisions A(b) a5 11
Quistanding claims liability (). 4,638 4,685
Unearnad premium liability 2(a) 34,683 40,965
Total non-current llabilities 39,427 45,020
Total liabilities ) 85,289 102,198
Net assets 104,164 89,491
EQUITY
Conlributed equity A=) 2,000 2,000
Reservas a(h) 55,669 56,110
Retained earnings 48,495 31,381
- Total equity 104,164 80,491

The above Statemant of Financial Position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying nofes.
6




Notas

Balancs at 1 January 2014

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive Income for the year

Dividends paid
Tax cansglidation reserve
Balancs at 31 December 2014

Balance at 1 January 2015
Profit for the year

Other comprehansiva Income
Total comprehensive income for the year

Balancs at 31 December 2015

The above Stalement of Changes in Equily should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Hallmark General Insurance Company Lid
Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 31 Decamber 2015

Attributable to owners of Halimark General Insurance

Company Ltd .
Contributsd Retained Total
equity Reserves earnings eguity
$'000 $000 $000 $080

2,000 53,402 115,960 171,362

- - 18,421 18421

- 268 - 268

- 268 18421 18,688

- - {102,000} (103,000)

- 2,440 - 2,440

2,060 56,110 31,381 88,401
2,000 86,110 21,381 80,49

- — 15,114 15,114

- {441} - (441)

- {441} 15,114 14,673

2,000 55,669 46,495 104,164




Cash flows from operating actlvities

MNat premium receivad

Qutward reinsurance expense

Claims paid

Payments to suppliers and employees

Interest received

Income taxes allocated from fax consolidated group
Net cash inflow from operating activities

Cash flows from investing actlvities
Proceeds from sale of financlal assets
Mat cash inflow from investing activities

Gash flows from financing activitles
Dividends paid to company's shareholders
Net cash {(outflows} from financing activities

Net Increase/(decrease) In cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash gquivalenis at 1 January

Effects of exchangs rate changes on cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December

The above Statement of Cash Flows should be read In conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Hallmark General Insurance Company Ltd
Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 31 Decamber 2015

2018 2014
Notes $°000 $'000
46,163 58,311
37 {42)
(12,695) {10,857)
(32,184) (38,360)
4,501 8,905
(5,282) (2,602)
5(a) 340 15,355
- 45,952
- 45,952
. (103,000}
- {103,000}
340 (41,693)
170,517 211,263
1,787 847
2(a) 172,644 170,517




Hallmark General Insurance Company [.id
Notes to the financlal statementis
For the year ended 31 December 2015
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Hallmark General Insurance Company Ltd
Notes to the financial statements

For the year ended 31 Dacember 2015
(continued)

Financlal performance

This section provides additicnal information about those individua! line items relating 1o financial performance that
management considers most relevant in the context of the operations of the Company.,

1 Profit or loss information

{a) Netinsurance premium revenue

2015 2014
$'000 $'000
Groas writien premium 46,310 52,519
Movement in uneamed premiums 14,355 10,854
Quiwards relnsurance premium revenue/i{expense) 37 (42}
Net premium revenua 61,202 63,331
(b} Net claims incurred
2015 2014
Current Year Prior Years Total Current Year Prior Years Total
5000 $000 $'000 000 $'000 $'000
Gross claims incurred
and relaled expanses -
undiscounted 13,397 (1,242} 12,155 13,521 (1,517) 12,004
Discount and discount
movement - gross
‘claims incurred {170) 218 48 210} 248 36
13,227 (1.024) 12,203 13,311 {1.271) 12,040
Net claims Incurred 13,227 1,024) 12,203 13,311 {1,271} 12,040

Current perlod claims relate fo risk borne in ithe current financial year. Prior period claims relatg to a
reassessment of the risks bome in all previous financial years.
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Hallmark General Insurance Company Ltd
Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 Decomber 2015

1 Profit or loss information (continued)

(¢} Investment Income

Interest income

Realised net gains
Unrealised net (losses)
Total investmeant income

{d) Profit before income tax

Profit before income tax includes the following specific expenses:

Empioyee cosis
Personnel cost
Contribution to superannuation fund

Change in annual and long service leave provision

Other administrafive expenses
Marketing fees
Management fees

{e) Income tax expense

() income tax expense

Current tax expense

Deferred tax expense (nota 3(a))
Adjustments for current tax of prior years
Additional exit payment adjustment
Income tax expense

{continued)
2015 2014
$'000 $'000

4,363 8,275

- 156

- (523)

4,363 7,837
2015 2014
$'000 $000

6,843 8,093

534 840

18 (139)

820 176

9,324 10,328
2015 2014
$'000 $'000

4,555 5719

{11) 82

58 {205)

1,003 -

5,605 5.566
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" Hallmark General Insurance Company Lid
Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 Dacember 2015

{continued)
1 Profit or loss information (continued)
(e} Income tax expense (continued)
(i} Reconciliation of income fax expeanse fo prima facie tax payable
2015 2014
$000 $'000
Profit from continuing operations before income tax expense 20,719 23,987
Tax at the Australian tax rate of 30% (2014: 30%) and tax at the New
Zealand tax rate of 28% (2014: 28%) 8,081 7,074
Tax effect of amounts which are not deductiblef{taxable) in calculating
taxable incoma:
Entertainment - 5
Non taxable income {1,537} {1.512)
. 4,544 5,567
Adjustments for current tax of prior periods 5B )
Additional exit payment adjustment 1,003 -
Income tax expense 5,605 5,566

12




Hallmark General Insurance Company Lid
Notes to the financial statements

For the year ended 31 December 2015
{continued)

Balance sheet management

This sedtion provides additional information about thosa individual line items in the statement of financial position
that management considers most relevant in the context of the operations of the entity.

2 Financial assets and financial liabilities
{a} Cash and cash equivalents

2015 2014
$'000 $'000
Current assets
Cash at hank 8,943 9,609
Short tarm deposits 163,701 160,818
Total cash and cash equivalents 172,644 170,517
(b) Trade and other recelvables
2015 2014
$'000 $000
Current assets
Other receivables 954 1,389

These belances include amounts receivable from related parties {note 13(b)).
The carrying value disclosed above approximates fair value at end of the reporting period.

13



Hallmark General Insurance Company Litd
Notes to tha financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2015

(continued)
2 Financial assets and financial liabilities {continued)
(c) Deferred acquisition coats
2015 2014
000 §'000
Current assets
Deferred acquisition costs ’ 7.541 9,486
Non-cwitent assets
Deferred acquisition costs 7,236 8,756
2015 2014
$'000 §'000
Reconcifiation of changes in deferred acqiisiion costs:
Opening balance at 1 January 18,242 20,496
Acquisition costs incurred during the year * 2,843 3,515
Ampriisation charged to Income * {6,308) {5,772)
Closing balance at 31 Dacember 14,777 18,242

* Acquisition costs incumred during the year and Amortisation charged to income relate to the Personal icans
portfolios (excludes Cards porifolios) as there were no defarmred amorfisation costs as at 31 December 2015 and

31 December 2014 for Cards portfolios.
{d) Trade and other payables

' 2015 2014
Current llabllities $'000 $'000
Trade payables 19 7
Other payables 327 1,282
346 1,289
Non-current liabilities
Other payables 71 368
The carrying value disclosed above approximates fair value at end of the reporting period.
These balances include amounts payable to related parties (note 13(b)).
{e} Unearned commission income -
2015 2014
$£'000 £'000
Opening balance at 1 January 2 2
Commission income on premium earmed during the year {2} -
Closing balance at 31 December - 2

14



Hallmark General Insurance Company 1.td
Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2015

(continued)
2 Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)
{f) Outstanding claims liabliity
2015 2014
$'000 $'000
Central estimate 9,664 10,671
Risk margin 2,386 1,743
Clgims handling expanse 1,369 1,724
13,419 14,038
Discount to present value . (272) (319)
Gross ouistanding claims liability 13,147 13,719
Current B.509 9,034
MNon-current 4,638 4 685
Total outstanding claims liabllity 13,147 13,719
{i) The following ranges of discount rates were used in the measuwrement of culstanding claims and reinsurance
regoverios.
Australla

The current yeat discount rate is 2,0% (2014: 2.3%).

‘The subsequent years discount rate is 2.0% - 4.4% (2014: 2.0% - 3.8%).

The welghted average expacted term fo settlement of the outstanding claims from the end of the reporting period
is estimated to be 1.08 years (2014: 1.02 years).

New Zealand Branch

The current year discount rate is 2.65 % {2014: 3.54%)

The subsequent years discount rate is 2.65% (2014: 3.54%)

The welghied average expected tenmn to selilement of the outstanding clalms from the end of the reporting period
is estimated 1o be 0.64 years (2014: 0.70 years)

(k) Risk margin
Process for determining risk margin

The risk margin is an additional allowance for uncertainty in the ultimate cost of claims. The overall margin
adopted is determined by the board after considering the uncertainty [n the portfolio, Industry trends and the
Company's risk appetite.

To determine the margin adopted the appointed actuary has raviewed the factors impacting the porifolio to
establish a recommendad margin at the level required by the board. Factors considered include:

+  variability of dlaims experience of the porifolio;

« . quality of historical data;

= diversification between different classes within the portiolio; and

* increase in uncertainty due fo future economic envirenment and legislative changes.

The level of uncertainty varies between classes of business, as such the adopted risk margin vanes between
business classes. The risk margin is applied to the gross central estimate.

The aggregate risk margin, after diversilcation allowance, is intended to achiave a 90% (2014: 90%) probability
of sufficiency.

The risk margins applied to the major segments of the portfolio for 80% (2014: 90%) level of adequacy are:

15



Hallmark General Insurance Company Ltd
Notes to the financial statements
-For the year ended 31 Becamber 2015

{continusd)
2 Financial assets and financial liabilities {(continued)
(N Outstanding claims liability (continued)
Process for determining risk margin (continued)
' : 2015 2014
% %
Australia
Consumer credit insurance - disability 19.0 120
Consumer credit insurance - unemploymeant 459 30.6
New Zealand
Consumer cradit insurance - disability 26.7 10.7
Consumer credit insurance - unemployment 60.7 459
(i) Reconcitation of movement in discounied outstanding claims kability
2015 2014
Gross Reinsurance Net Gross Reinsurance Net
§'000 $'000 $000 $'000 $'000 000
Balance at 1
January 13,719 - 13,718 12,481 - 12,481
Current year
claims incurred 13,227 - 13,227 13,310 - 13,310
Change in
previous years
claims {1,024} - {1.024) (1,282) - {1.282)
Current ysar
claime paid /
reinsurance
recovered {4,631) - {4,631) (4,034) - (4,034}
Previous year
claims paid /
relnsurance -
recovered {8,144) - (8,144) {6,879) - (6,879}
13,147 - 13,147 13,596 - 13,596
Eifect of change
in discount rate - - - 123 - 123
Closing balance
at 31 December 13,147 « 13,147 13,719 .. - 13,719

(v} Claims davelopmernt fables

Claims development tablas are disclosed in order to put the claims estimates included in the financial statemenis
into context, sliowing comparison of ihose daims estimates with the claims results seen in previous years. In
effect, the table highlights the Company’s ability to provide a reliable esiimate of the total value of claims. The top
part of the table provides a review of current estimates of cumulative claims and demonstrates how tha estimated
claims have changed at subsequent reporiing or accidents year-ends. The lowar part of the table provides a
raconciliation of the total reserve included In the statement of financial posiiion and the estimates of cumulative
claims.
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Hallmark General Insurance Company Ltd
Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2015

{continued)
2 Financial assets and financial liabilities {continued)
{f) Outstanding claims liabllity (continued)
Gross
2011
and
Reporiing Year prior*  2012* 2013 2014 2015 Total
$000 §'000 §000 $000  $'000  $000
Estimate of gross ultimate claims cost
At end of reporting year 43250 8707 11542 12742 12,187
One year later 39,094 10,132 10,575 11,632 -
Two vears [ater 39863 10,247 10,884 - -
Three years later 40,743 10,554 - - -
Four years later 41,515 - - - -
Current estimate of cumulative claims 41,515 10554 10,884 11,532 12,187 86672
Cumulative payments to date (41,331) (10,098) (9,877) (9,040) {4,405) (74,751)
Undiscounted claims handling expenses 22 56 123 299 997 _ 1,408
Gross outstanding claims - undiscounted 207 512 1130 2791 8779 13419
Discount impact (3} {11 {24) 68 (170) (272)
Gross outstanding claims - discounted 204 501 _ 1,406 2,727 8,609 13,147
Net
2011
and
Reporting Year prior* 2012 2013 2014 2015  Total

$000 §$'000 %000 5000 000  §'COO
Estimate of net ultimate claims cost :
At end of reporting year 43,250 B707 11,542 12,742 12187

One vear later 39,004 10,132 10,575 11,532
Two years later 30,863 10,247 10884 -
Thres yaars later 40,7435 10,554 - -
Four years later 41,515 - - -
Current estimate of cumulative claims 41,515 10554 10,884 11,632 12,187 86672
Cumulative payments {0 date (41,331) (10,098) (9,877} (9,040) (4,405) (74,751)
Undiscounted claims handfing expenses 23 56 123 280 897 1408
Net outstanding claims - undiscounted 207 512 1,130 2,77 8779 13419
Dizcount impact (3) {11) {24) {64) (170) (272}
Met outstanding claims - discounted 204 51 1106 2,727 8,600 13,147

* All actuarial data relating to the New Zealand Branch of the Company, prior to the 5th March 2012 , relates io
the Insurance portfolio of Simply Insurance New Zealand Limited, and is disclesed to reflact the historlcal
actuarial profile of the insurance porifolio, which was transferred to the Branch on the 5tk March 2012,

(v} Liabifity adequacy test
The liability adequacy test {LAT) is an assessment of the canying amount of unearned premium liabilities and is

cenducted at the end of each reporting period. The test is calculated separately for each portfolio of contracts that
are subject to broadly similar risks and are managed together as a single portfolio.

For the purpeses of the liability adequacy test, the net premium liabilities at a 75% probability of sufficlency as at

31 December 2015 iz $46,969,651 (2014: $57,321,986), therefore the liability adequacy test at reporting date
resulted in a surplus for the company.
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Hallmark General Insurance Company Ltd
Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2015

{continued)
2 Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)
{g) Unearned premium liability
B 2015 2014
$'000 $000
Balance as at 1 January 85,244 95,658
Premiums written during the year* 15,551 20,792
Premiums eamed during the year * {30,069) (31,108)
Closing balance as at 31 December 70,826 85344
Current 36,143 44 379
Non-current 34,683 40,965
Total unearned premium liability 70,826 85,344

* Premiums written and samed during the year relate to the Personal loans portfolios (excludes Cards portfolios)
as thers were no unearned premium liabilities as at 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014 for Cards

partfolios.
(h} Fair value measurements
ff) Fair value hiorarchy

This section expleins the judgements and estimates made in deiermining the fair values of the financial
inatruments that are recognised and measured at fair value in the financial statements. To provide an indication
about the refiability of the Inputs used in determining fair value, the Company has classified its financial
instruments into the three levels prescribed under the accounting standards. An explanation of each level follows

underneath the table.

Thera are no financial assets at fair value as at 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014,
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Hallmark General Insurance Company Ltd
Notes to the financlal statemants

For the yaar anded 31 December 2015
{continued)

2 Financial assets and financial liabilities {continued)
(h} Fair value measurements {continued)
Level 1: Quoted prioe; (unadjusted) for identical assets or llabilities in active markets.

Lavel 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly {i.e. as prices} or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices), including quoted prices for similar assets and
liabilities in active markets.

Level 3; Inputs to the valuation methedology are uncbservable and significant to the fair value measurement.
() Vafuation techniques used to defermine fair values

Spacific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments include:

« The use of quoted market prices or dealer guotes for similar instruments; and

. The fair value of the remaining financlal instruments is datermined using discounted cash flow analysis.

3 Non-financial assets and liabilities
(a) Deferred tax assets

2015 2014
$'000 000
The bajantce comprises famporary differences atfribuiable to:
Employee entilements 464 423
Operating accruals 108 624
Indirect claims handling expense 411 422
Other 77 G2
Total defarred tax assets . 1,080 1,531
{) Movemenls in defarred tax assels
Movemants in deferred tax assels were as follows:
2045 2014
$'000 $'000
Opening balance st 1 Janu‘ars; 1,531 1,742
Charged to profit or loss (note 2{e)) 1 (62)
Over provision in prior years 6 {159)
Additional exit paymant adjustment {488) -
Closing balance at 31 December 1,060 150
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3 Non-financial assets and liabilities (continued)

(b) Provislons

Employee entitliements - current
Annual leave

Long service leave

Total employee entittements - current

Employee entittaments - non current:
Long service leave
Total employee entitliements - non current

Total number of employees as at 31 December 2015: 60 (2014: 57)

4 Equity
{a} Contributed equity
Share capital
2015 2014
No. of Shares  No. of Shares
Paid up ordinary shares 10,001 10,001

{continued)
2015 2014
$'000 $'000
401 402
463 426
864 828
35 11
35 11
2015 2014
$'000 $'000
2,000 2,000

(} Ordinary shares

The Company does not have authorised capital or par value In respect of Its Issued shares. All issuad shares are

fully paid.

Crdinary shares entitle the holder to participate in dividends and the proceeds on winding up of the Company in

proportion to the number of and amounts paid on the shares held.

On a show of hands every holder of ordinary shares present at & meeting in person or by proxy, is entitled to one

vote, and upon & poll each share is enfitiad to ona vote.

() Parent enfilies

Hallmark General Insurance Company Ltd is owned by Hallmark Life Insurance Company Lid with 100% majority
interest, which Is Incorporated in Australia. The Company’s ultimate parent entity is KVD Australia Holdco Pty 1td,

which is incorporated in Australia,
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4 Edquity (continued)

{b} Reserves

Foreign currency translation reserve
Tax consolidation reserve
Tatal raserves

() Movemenls in reserves
Mavements In aach class of reserves ware as follows:

Reserves

Forefgn currency fransiation reserve

Opening balance at 1 January

Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations
Closing balance 31 Dacember

Tax consolidation reserve

Opening balance at 1 January

Current tax provision transferred to head entity
Closing balance 31 Dacember
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{cantinued)
2015 2014
$'000 $'000
844 871
54,725 55,239
55,669 56,110
2015 2014
$'000 $'000
871 603
73 268
944 a7
55,239 52,799
{514) 2,490
54,725 55,239
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{continued}
$ Cash flow information
(a) Reconclliation of profit after income tax to net cash flows from operating actlvities
2015 2014
$000 $'000
Profit for the year ' 15,114 - 18,421
Adjustments
Resfized (gains)losses on sale of financlal assets - (155)
Unrealised lossf{gains) in value of financial assets - 593
Effect of foreign exchange on cash and cash equivalents (1,787) (847)
Changs in operating assets and llabilitios:
(increase)/decrease in trade debtors 319 5,684
Increase/{decrease) in trade and other payables ' {1.241) {4,805)
(Increase)/decreass in othor receivables 126 624
Decrease/(increass) In deferred acquisition costs 3,483 2257
(Decrease)increase in employ2es entittements 60 {198)
{Decrease)increase in outstanding claim liability (572) 1,238
(Decrease)increase in unearmned premium liability (14,518) {10,314)
(Decrease)increase In tax consolidation reserve {513) 2,440
(Decrease)increase in fareign currency transiation raserva 72 268
{Increase)/decrease in net deferred tax assels 471 211
{Decrease)increase in cugrent tax liability (654) (62)
Net cash inflow from operating activities 340 15,355
Risk

This section of the notes discusses the Company's exposure to various risks and shows how these could affact
the Company's financial position and performance.

6 Actuarial assumptions and methods

The Company writes consumer credit insurances, These classes of business can be classified as follows:
Consumer credit insurance

The risks covered in this group include:

involuntary unemployment
Disability

Gap

Merchandise and price protection
Stolen card cover

Process used to determine outstanding ¢laims liabilities (actuarial methods)

The general approach to actuarial estimation of insurance liabilities is to analyse all avallable past experiencs,
including the number of reporied and finalised claims, timing and amounie of claim payments. This analysis
aliows patterns to be identified in the past experience. Based on this, development patterns associated with the
run-off of outstanding claims and premium liabilities at the balance date can be estimated.

The determination of outstanding claims liabilities involves two steps:
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6 Actuarial assumptions and methods (continued)
Process used to determine outstanding claims liabilltles (actuarial mathods) {eontinued)

{i} The determinaticn of the central estimate of outstanding claims at the balance date. The central estimate of
outstanding claims includes an allowance for claims incurrad but not reported (IBNR) and the further
development of reported claims, also known as incurred but not enough reported {IBNER).

The central estimate has no delibarate bias towards either over or under estimation. Generally speaking,
this means that the central estimate is assessed to have a 50% chance of adequacy.

(i) fhe determination of a risk margin and claims handling expense pravision to be added to the central
estimates of outstanding claims.

Involuntary unemployment and disabillty - branch

In getermining the central estimate of the outstanding claims lisbllittes, separate analyses were perfonﬁed onthe
open (including pending) and IBNR claims.

The individual cialmant projection method was adopied for the open and pending claims. This method examines
the likelihood of claimants remaining on benefit from month to month and applies an expected future claim
duration to the actual lavel of monthly benefits for individual ¢laims. For pending ciaims, an additional assumption
was made on the probability of the claim being accepled in the first place (claims acceptance rate).

For IBNR claims, the central estimate of the outstanding claims liabilities is estimaled by assuming a number of
|BNR claims 1o be reported by insurance term, underwriting period, accident period and reporting period. The
indlvidual claimant projection method is then applied with an assumed average monthly benefit and claims
.accepiance rate.

Involuntary unemployment and disability - non branch

Aggregate projection methods such as payment per claim incurred {PPCI) and payment per claim open (PPCD)
ara adopted for assessing the outstanding claims of non branch parifolics.

GAP, stolen card cover, merchandise and price profection

The standard actuarial projection technique of payment per claim finalised (PPCF) wes adopted in the
determination of the central estimate of the outstanding claims liability for this risk, where dlaims are generally
finalised with the payment of & single lump sum amount.

Actuarial assumptions

The personal line insurances are currently in run off and the outstanding claims liability Is immatertal, The key
actuarial assumptions for the determination of the outstanding claims lighilities of the consumer credit insurances
are as follows:

2015 2015 2015 2014 2014 2014
Unemployment* Disability* GAP/Price  Unemployment®  Disabllity* GAP/Price
protection Pmtection
Average waighted
term to seiflement*  2.8-4.5 months 104 months 53months 2%a47months 5.7 months 4.2 months
Awarage monthly
benefiisfaverage $250-5750 por  $250-$750 per $260-3750 per  $250-5750 per
clalm size* month month $100 month month $110
Experse rate 13% 13% 13% 15% 15% 15%
Discount rate 2.0%pa4.4%pa 20%pa-4.4%pa 2.0%pa-4.4%pa 2.0%pa-3.8%pa 2.0%pa-3.8%pa 2.5%pa-5.6%pa

* varies depending en the insurance terms of the policy and underwriting period
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6 Actuarial assumptions and methods {continued)

Process used to detormine actuarial assumptions

A description of the processes used to determine the above key aciuarial 'assumptions is provided below:

«  Average weighted term (o settfemant from the end of the raporting period
For unemployment and disabillty claims, the average weighted term to settlement reprasents the amount of
time needed for the outstanding claims liability to run off completely, taking into account future claim
terminations. This is based on claim fermination analysis parformed on the historical claims experiences. The
claim termination analysis Is performed separately for unemployment and disability.

Termineation retes by duration from the date of incident are adopted and these are usad to derive the
probability of payment on each claim for each month Inte the future. This projection produces the average
weighted ferm to settlement. :

»  Average monthly benefils / Average claim size
The averags monthly benefit and average claim size assumpficon is used in the estimation of the outstanding
claims Hability relating to [BNR claims. For disabllity and unemployment claims the average monthly benefit
assumption is determined after analysing the historical relativity of the average monthly benefit for claims to
the average monthly benefit for all policies underwritten (from the same period as those that result in dlaims).

+  Expense rale
The adopied clalms handiing expense rate of 13% {2014:15%) of the projected gross clzsim payments, was
determined based on the results of an expense investigation carried out in 2015,

v+ Discount rals )
The central estimates of the outstanding claims liabilities were discounted to allow for future investment
income attributable to the lfabilities during the run off period. The future investment earnings assumptions are
estimates of the future annual risk frae rates of return. They have been derived from the yield curve on
Australian Government Bonds as at 31 December 2015.

Bensitivity anatysls

The outstanding claims liabilities included in the reporied results are calculated based on the key actuarial
assumptions as disclosed above. The movement in any of the above key actuarial assumptions will impact the
performance and equity of the Company. The table below describes how a change in each of the assumptions
will affect the oulstanding claims liabilities.

Impact on net  Impact on total
outstanding outstanding
: clalms liabllities claims liabililes
Key actuarial assumptions Changes ($000's) (%)

2015
Claim termination rate* Reduce the branch credit termination rates 877 10.3
. by 10%

Average monthly benefits* Increase the branch credit Insurances aso 4.1
IBMR average monthly benefits by 10%

Number of IBNR claims* Increase the number of branch credit 350 4.1
insurances IBNR claims by 10%

Clalms handling expense rate  Increass from 13% to 17% 327 38
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{continued)

6 Actuarial assumptions and methods (continued)

Sensitivity analysis {continuad)

2014

Claim termination rate* Reduce the branch credit termination rates 1,017 11.5
by 10%

Average monthly benefits* Increase the branch credit insurances 373 4.2
IBNR average monthly benefits by 10% ‘

Number of IBNR clgims* Increase the number of branch credit 373 4.2
insurances IBNR daims by 10%

Claims handling expense rate  Increase from 15% fo 19% 306 34

* Branch cradit insurance only

New Zealand Branch

The Campany writes the following lines of business In New Zealand:
Consumer credit insurances

The risks covered in this group include:

*  Involuntary unemployment
+ Disability

» Merchandise and price protection
= Stolen card cover

During 2007, the New Zealand Branch ceased writing policies categorised as hire purchase insurance and
personal joan insurance {"old products”) and commenced writing a new consumer credit insurance product ("new
products”, from August 2007). As of 31 December 2013, no liability has been projected for old products with zll
policies expired. From May 2011, the New Zealand Branch started offering a new credii card balance protection
product called GEM Visa, which providas cover for disability, unemployment and merchandlse protection, price
protection and stolen cards cover.

Effective 5 March 2012, the Insurance business of Simply Insurance New Zealand Limited {"SINZ"), a partner
company within the GE Capital Group, was transferred into Hallmark General Insurance Company Ltd . This
business now operates as a branch in New Zealand.

Process used to determine outstanding claims llabllitles {actuarial methods)

The general approach to actuarial estimation of insurance liabilities is to analyse all available past experience,
inciuding numbers of reported and finalised claims, amounts of claim payments, changes in case estimates and
incurred loss ratios. This analysis allows pattemns to be identified in the past experience. Based on this,
development patterns associated with the run-off of outstanding claims and premium liabilities at the balance
date can be estimated.

The determination of outstanding claims llabllities involves two steps:

{{) The detemination of the central estimate of 6utstand[ng claims at the balance date. The central estimate of
outstanding ¢laims includes an allowance for incurrad but not reported {IBNR) claims and the further
development of reported claims.

The central estimate has neo deliberate blas towards sither over or under estimation. Generally speaking,
thiz means that the central estimate Is assessed to have a 50% chance of adequacy.

(i} The determination of a risk margin and claims handling expense provision lo be added io the central
estimates of oufstanding claims.
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6 Actuarial assumptions and methods (continued)

The estimation of outstanding claims liabilitles has been performed separately for each of the dalm types ansing
under the different policies, namely: death, disability, material damage, unemployment and merchandise
protection, price prolection and stolen cards,

Disability and unemployment (except credit cards)

in determining the central estimale of the outstanding claims liabliities, separate analyses were performed on the
open {including pending)} claims and IBNR claims.

The individual elaimant projection method was adopted for the open and pending claims. Claim payments have
bean projecied from the valuation date until the end of the policy term, taking into account the probability of
termination and (imits fo claim paymenis as stipulated in the policy. The claim paymenis are based on the
monthly loan instalments for each individual claim. Far pending claims, an acceptance rate assumption is also
applied In the valuation.

For IBNR claims, the central estimate of the outstanding claims liability was based on an estimated number of
IBNR claims and average claim sizes. The number of IBNR clzims was based on analysis of claim numbers for
lines of business in runoff and analysis of claim frequency for line of business currently underwritten. The
average claim size is estimated from expected average total duration and average monthly benefits, with policy
design taken into account. For examgple, the consumer credit insurance has a maximum unemployment payment
period of thrae months, which was reflacted in the analysis.

Disability, unemployment and merchandise protection, price protection and stolen cards {credit cards
only}

The standard actuariel projection technique of payment per claim finalised (PPCF) was adopted in the
determination of the central aslimate of the outstanding claims kability for this risk, where clalms are generally
finalised with the payment of a single [ump sum amount. This involves estimating the number of future claim
finalisations and average claim sizes. The number of future finalications was based on analysis of claim reports,
finalizations. The average claim size was based on the payments made on claims finalised.

Actuarial assumptions
The key actuarial assumptions for the determination of the outsianding claims are as follows:
2015 2045 2014 2014

Disability™ Unemployment** Disabilty** Unemployment**
(excl cradit cards) (axc! credi cards) (exc! credit cards) {exdl credit cards)

Termination rates 4.5-14.0%* 10.0-22.0%* 4.5-14.5%" 10.0-25.0%"*
Average weighted term to settlement 10.1 manths 2.5-3.8 months™ 10.9 months 2.5-3.8 months™
Number of IBNR claims accapted (total) 58 &7 77 62
Average Clalm Size for IBNR ¢laims $5,000 $1,100-$4,700 755300 $1,200-51,800
Discount rate 2.65% 2.65% 3.54% 3.54%

* Assumption varies according to the future claim duration

** Varies depending on underwriling period
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6 Actuarial assumptions and methods {continued)
Actuarial assumptions {continued)
2015 2015 2015 2014 2014 2014
Merchandise
protaction, Merchandiss
price protection protecilon, price
and stofen protection and
Bisability {credit Unemployment cards {credit Disability (credit Unemployment  stolen cards
. cards) {credit cards) cards) cards) {credit cards)  (credit cards)
Average setioment
size $2,500-52,800 $1,700-$2,500 $250 $2,500-$2,800 %1,700-82,500 $300
Number of future
finalisations 56 80 19 61 116 31
Other assumptions

The outstanding clalms provision includes a dlaim handling expense of 15% and an additional 1% for medical
axpeanses, with a prudential margin calculated at a 20% prabability of adequacy.

Process used to determine actuarial assumptions

A description of the processes used to determine the above key actuarial assumptions is providad below:

+  Termination rates
Termination rates by claim duration from the date of incident are adopted and these are used to derive the
probability of payment on each claim for each month into the future.

+ Average weighied term fo settlement from the end of the reporling period
The average term to settlement from reporting date s based on ¢laim fermination analysis performed on the
historical claims experiences. The claim termination analysis is performed separafely for unemployment and
disability.

Termination rates by duration from the date of Incident are adopted and these are used to derive the
probability of payment on each claim for each month into the fulure. This projection produces the average
welghted term to settlement. ' )

«  Average claim size for IBNR claims {new products only)
For disabllity and unemployment, the adopted average claim size was based on two types of analysis: the
expacted average total duration for each clalm type and benefit duration (only for unemployment) multiplied
by the average monthly payment amount for each claim lypa, and the historical average claim size. The
average duration was based on the assumed termination rates.

+  Number of IBNR claims {new producis only)
The number of IBNR claims was based on an analysis of historical claim numbers for policies in runoff and
an analysis of claim frequency for lines of business currently underwritten.

«  Average claim size for seffemenis (credif cards only)
For credit cards policies, the adopted average clalm size was based on historic ratios of claim payments to
numbers of claims finalised.

= Number of future finalisations (credit cards only)
For credit cards poiicies, the number of futura finalisations is hased on an anaiysis of historical claim reports
and finalisation rates. This then enables the future numbers of reports, handled claims and finalisations i be
projected. :

27



Hallmark General Insurance Company Ltd
Notes to the financial statements

For the year ended 31 December 2015
(continued)

& Actuarial assumptions and methods {continued).

Process used to determine actuarial assumptions {cantinued)

»  Expense rafe
The adopted claims handling expense rate of 13% of the projected gross claim payments, was determined
based on the results of an expense investigation carried out in 2015. An additional 1% for medical expenses
is applied to disability claims.

» Dijscount rale
The central estimates of the outstanding claims liabilitles for the periodic bensfits were discounted to allow for
future investment income attributable to the liabilities during the run off period. The discount factor was based
on the annual risk free rates of ratum from the yield curve on New Zealand Government Bonds.

Sensitivity analysis

The outstanding claims liabilities included in the reported resulis are calculated based on the key actuarial
assumptions as disclosed above. The movement in any of the above key actuarial assumptions will impact the
parformance and equity of the Compary. The table below describes how a change in sach of the assumptions
will affect the cutstanding dlaims labilities. The outstanding cleims liebllities are on & discounied basls and
include clalm handling expenses and a risk margin st the 90% probability of adequacy.

Impact of changes in assumptions for old and new products on total cutstanding claims liabifity:

Impacten net Impact on total
ocutstanding autstanding
claims labilitles clalms liabilities

Koy actuarlal assumptions Changes ($000's) (%)

Clalm termination rate* Reduce all tarmination rates by 10% 134 4.5

IBNR Increase IBNR ACS by 10% / Increase 116 39
number of IBNR claim by 10%

Claims handling expense rate Increase the claims handling expense rate 77 26
from 13% to 17%

Impact of changes in assumptions for credit cards on total outstanding claims provision:

Impacton net  Impact on total
claims provision netclaims

Key actuarial assumptions Changes {$C00"s) provision (%)

Claim development Increase chain iadder factors by 10% +44 +1.5%

Average settlement size Increase average sefflementsize by 10%  +40 +1.3%

Claims handling expense rate  Increase the claims handling expense rate +37 +1.2%
from 13% to 17%

Changes to key assumptions

At the December 2015 valuation, risk margin assumptions were increased based on:
» APRA’s new Industry Review Report as at 30 September 2013 (issued 17 February 2015);

» The current uncertainty regarding unemployment at a macro level; and
» The impact of the Green Belt claims management program.
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7 Financial risk management

This note explains the Company’s exposure to financlal risks and how these risks could affect the Company's
future financial performance. Current year profit or loss information has been included where relevant to add
further context.

{a} Transitlen Risk

Following completion of the sale of GE's consumer business to KVD Australia Pty Ltd, operational risk exposures
are higher as services provided under the Transitional Services Agreement (TSA) with GE are transferred to
Latitude. This will result in significant change across the business and Hallmark General Insurance Company Lid
is actively monitoring and managing these risks.

{b) Creditrisk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss due to'a counterparty failing to perform their contractual obligations and
principally arises through the Company’s investmant in financial instruments, receivables from related or other
parties, and claims on reinsurance contracts.

The following policies and procedures are in place to mitigate the Company's exposure to credit risk:

(} Financial assofs

The Company's investment mandate sels out the investment management guldslines approved by the board.
The guidelines establish credit approval awthorities, concentrations limits, and approved investment portfolio
parametars, these guidelines comply with the GE Capital Corporation Financial Institutions Credit Standards
(GECC FICS} policy which sets out concentration limits and additional portfolio parameters. The Company will
continue to adopt the GECC FICS policy until a new Investment Policy is approved by the Board in 2016.
Management conducts a regular review of the investment holdings, compliance is monitored and exposures or
breaches are reported to the board, The mandate is reviewed regularly for perinence and for changes in the risk
anvironment.

The Company only invests with counterparties that have a credit rating of at least A1/A from Standard & Poor's
{8&P). The Company further limiis Its exposure to credit risk by setting individual exposure limits. There is no
significant concentration of credit risk and management does not expect any counterparly o fail o meet its
obligations.

) Reinsurance assels

Reinsurance is placed with counterperties within the guidelines of the reinsurance management strategy (ReMS}
. Counterparties must have an S&P credit rating of at least A. The Company further sels its exposure {o credit
risk by setting individual exposure limits. At the end of each reporting period, the management performs an
assessment of creditworthiness of reinsurers and updates the reinsurance management strategy (ReMS).

(i} Trade and other receivables

The Company's meximum credit risk exposure at balance date is Imited 1o the carrying amount of the financial
assets as stated in the statement of financial position. The Company does not have a 5|gn|f icant concentration of
credit risk with any counterparty, other than related parties (See note 13).
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7 Financial risk management (continued) -
(b} Credit risk (continued)
The table below shows the Company's maximum exposure to credit risk at balance date.
Non- MNon-
investment Investment Total neither
Investment grade grade past due nor Past dua or
grade  satisfactory * unsatisfactory Impaired Impalred Total
2015 $'o0n $000 £000 $'000 $000 $000
Financlal assets
Cash and cash
equivalents 172,644 - - 172,644 - 172,644
Trade and other )
receivables - 954 - 954 - 954
Financial assets at fair
value
through profit or loss
Tatal credit risk
exposure 172,644 - 854 - 173,598 = 173,588
Non- Non-
investment  Investment Total neither
Investment grade grade pastdue nor Pastdue or
grade  satisfactory * unsatisfactory Impaired impaired Total
2014 $'000 $'000 $000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Financlal assets
Cash and cash
equivalents 170,517 - - 170,517 - 170,517
Trade and other
receivables - 1,399 - 1,399 - 1,399
Financial assetls at fair
valus
through profit or loss
Total credit risk
exXposurea 170,517 1,399 - 174,916 - 171,916

* A receivable is deemed satisfactory when management is satisfied the obligor has the capacity to meet its
financial obligations. I

The table below classifies the financial assets of the Company by counterparty credit rating:

AAA AA A . BBB Not rated Total
2015 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Financlal Assets

Cash and cash equivalents - . - 172,644 - - 172,644
Trade and other receivables* - - - - 954 954
Financial assets at fair valus

through

profit or loss

Total credit risk exposure - - 172,644 - 954 173,598
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7 Financial risk management (continued)
{b) Credit risk {continued)

AAA AA A BBB Not rated Total
2014 $000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'e00 $'000
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents - 1,357 188,160 - - 170,517
Trade and other receivables* - - - - 1,398 1,399
Financial assets af fair value
through
profit or loss
Total credit risk exposure - 1,357 168,160 - 1,399 171,816

* The receivables are largely with related partles (see note 13(b)).

No receivables are past due or impaired at balance date (2014 Nil).

{c) Liquldity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company wili not be able to mest its financial obligations as they fall due. The
Company's objective end funding strategy seeks to ensure liquidity and diversity of funding sources to meet

actual and contingent liabilities in both stable and adverse market canditions.

The Company's liguidity Is primarily monitored through the production of statement of cash flows for board
review. Perlodlc review of the maturity profile of the Company's financia! assets and liabilities is performed to

ensure sufficient liquidity is maintained.

The following Is an analysis of the maturity profile of undiscounted confractual cash flows associated with the

Company's financial liabilities at balance data, excluding insurance liabilities:

Uptoa Over 5
year 1-2years 2-5years No term Total
2015 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 §000 $'000
Trade and other payables 348 Al - - - 417
Dutstanding claims liahilities 8,508 2,825 1,777 36 = 13,147
Net principal liabilities 8,855 2,886 1,777 36 - 13,564
Uptoa : Qver 5
year 1-2 yoars 2-5years years No term Total
2014 $'000 $'o00 $'000 $'000 $000 $000
Trade and other payables 1,299 359 - - - 1,658
Quistanding claims liabilities 9,034 2,843 1,802 40 - 13,719
Net principal liabilites 10,333 3,202 1,802 40 - 15,377

Tha Company's financial assets and liabilities are carried in the statement of financial position at amounts that

approximate falr value,
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7 Financial risk management {continued)

{d) Marketrisk

Market rigk is the risk that the fair value of its financial iristruments or future cash flows will decrease due to
changes in external economic variables such as interest rates, currency rates and equity prices.

The board is responsible for developing and monitoring the risk management policies of the Company in refation
to market risk. The Company's Investment activities follow the GECGC FICS policy. The BECC FICS policy
document outlines the level of acceptable market risk, induding counterparly ratings and exposure levels that
apply to the investment activitios of companies within the GECC Group. The Company will continue to adapt the
GECC FICS policy until a new Investment Palivy is approved by the Board in 2016.

(0 Currency risk

Currency risk Is the risk that the value of recognised assets and liabilities or the cash flows from possible future
transactlons, that are denominated in a currency, other than that of the functional curency, will decrease due to
changes in market exchange rates,

The Company has no foreign currency exposure at balance date that is considered material.

() Interest raie risk

Intersst rate risk is the risk that the value of financial instruments will fluctuate as a result of changes in market
interest rates.

The following table analyses the impact of a reasonable possible movement in market interest rates on the
Cormpany's operating results.

Impact on
Change  profit
Carrying in before
Amount variables tax Impact on Equity Total
Uptoa Over 5
yaar 12years 2-S5years years
2015 $'000 % $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'c00
Financial assets
Short term
deposits 163,701 -1 1,637) 1,146) - - - 1,1486)
163,701 1,637) 1,146) - - - 1,146)
Impact on
Change  profit
Carrying in before o
Amount varlables  tax Impact on Equity Total
Uptoa Over 5
year 1-2 years 2.5 years years
2014 $'000 % $000 $'000 £000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Financial assets
Short term
deposits 160,818 | {1,608)  {1,126) - - - (1,126)
160,818 [1,608) {1,126) - - - _ {1,126)

The analysis is performed on the same basis for 2014 and assumaes thai all other variables remain the same,
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(continued)

8 Capital management
Capital consists of ordinary shares and retained eamings.

The Company's capital maragement stralegy plays a central rele in managing capital rsk arising from the
busliness activities of the Company, providing an appropriate level of capital to protect policyholders' interests and
satisiy regulators. The strategy seeks to ensure sufficiant capital levels are maintained In both stable and adverse
market conditions.

The Company has adopted a target surplus policy to assist the board and management to manage its capital
position. The farget surplus level has been set with reference 10 2 range of risks and possible adverse scenarios
faced by the Company.

The Company has net assets in excess of the adopted target surplus requirement, reflecting its current strong
capital position.

In addition fo the Company's target surplus policy, extemal capital requirernents are sst and regulated by the
Australian Prudential Regulation Autharity (APRA). The Company calculates its capital position according 1o the
relevant Prudential standards which ensures sufficient capital is maintained to meet policyholder obligations. An
insurer's capital base is expected tv be adeqguate for the slze, business mix, complexity and risk profile of its
business,

It is the Cempany's policy to hold capital levels in excess of those required by APRA according to its target
surphus policy, the capital level is regularly monitored to minimise the risk of a regulatory breach.

For detailed information on the Company's capital position and the capital requirements of APRA, refer to rote
8(b).

(a) Risk management
Insurance contracts

An Insurance contract is a contract under which the insurer accepts significant insurance risk from the
pulicyholder by agresing te compensate the policy holder for a specified uncertain future event that will adversely
affect them. Insurance rigk is other than financial rsk.

The significance of insurance risk under any one contract is determined by the uncertainty surrounding the
probability and timing of the insured event occurring, and the magnitude of ils effect. Insurance risk is assessed
by the Company at a contract level on its inception and is periodically reassessed as the risk may vary during the
period of insurance cover, : '

The majority of direct insurance contracts written are entered into on a standard jorm basls. There are no special
terr and conditions In any non-standard contracts that have a material impact on the financial statements.

The business written ¢onslsis mainly of consumer credit insurance.
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8 Capital management (continued)

(a) Risk management {continued)

insurance risk management

Insurance risk management is the assessment and quantification of the likelihood and financial impact of events
that may require setfiement by the Insurer; and the ability of the Company o mitigate the financial impeact of these
events on its operating results.

In accordance with Prudential Standards CPS 220 Risk Management and GPS 230 Relnsurance Managemant
for General Insurers issued by APRA, the board and senior management of the Company have developed,
implemented and maintained a sound and prudent risk management strategy {RMS) and a relnsurance
management strategy (ReMS).

The RMS and ReMS identify the Company's policles, procedures, progesses and controls that address all known
material risks, financial and nen-financial, arising from the business. Annually, the board certifies to APRA that
adequate strategies have been put in place to monitor those risks, that the Company has systems in place to
ensure compiliance with fegistative and prudential requirements, and that the board has satisfied itseif as to the
compliance with the RMS and ReMS.

Specific key components of the RMS and ReMs are detailed further balow.

{0 Underwrifing skrafegy

The board has developed an underwriling strategy to ensure that the Company has the ability to mest the
insurance needs of the policy holders and o ensure the ability 1o pay benefits and claims when due. The strategy
involves the identification of risks by type, impact and likelihood and involves the application of mathematical
modeling to determine that products are appropriately priced.

(i} Reinsurance sirategy

A conservative approach is taken in determining the level of risk appetite appropriate for the Company and whera
deemad appropriate will spread the risk associated with the insured events according to s ReMS. All
reinsurance treaties ara subject to analvtical and statistical modellng to ensure that they offer a sufficient level of
cover for the identified exposures whilst in alignment with the ReMs of the Company.

There are three immaterial reinsurance policies relating to accidental death and warranty products. Given the
caplta! position of the Company and estimated insurance concentration risk charge of $18.10 million (NZ Branch
$5.24 miilion} at 31 December 2015 [2014: $20.68 million, NZ Branch $6.25 million), the Company has adopted
the pasition that catastrophe cover is not required.

(i) Claims management

Strict claims management proceduras ensure the timely and accurate payment of claims in accordance with
palicy conditions. Claim outcomes are monitored 1o track the actual versus expécted experience of the portfolio,
with feedback delivered to underwriting and product development.

() Concentration of insurance risk

The Company's portfolio of products and policy holders is sufficiently diversified such that there is no material
concentration of insurance risk.
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8 Capital management (continued)
{b) Capital adequacy

The Company is raquired to hold prudential reserves, over and above the genaral insurance contract liabilities, as
a buffer against adverse future experience and poor investment returns. Life and General Insurers are required {o
follow the relevant Prudential Standards as prescribed by APRA. The required leve! of capital for regulatory
purposaes (the prudential capital amount, or PCA) is intended to take account of the full range of risks to which a
general insurer is exposed and a general company must ensure that the general company has, at all times, a
capital basge in excess of its PCA (plus any additional amount as required by APRA).

The excess of the Company's capital base over the PCA as at 31 December 2015 was $79.8 million {2014: $60.0
miltion}.

In addition to the reguiatory capital requirements, the Company maintains a target surplus providing an additional
capital butfor against adverse events.

2015 2014
$°000 $000
(a) Capital base 110,361 95,440
(b) Prescribad cepital amount 30,599 35434
Capital In excess of prescribed capital amount = {a) - {b) 79,762 60,006
Capital adequacy muitiple = {a}f(b) 3.61 2.69
2015 2014
$'000 $'000
Capital base:
Net assets : 104,164 89,491
Regulatory adjustment applied in the calculation of ller 1 capital 6,197 5,849
Common equity Tier 1 Capital 110,361 95,440
Prescribed capltal amount:
Insurance risk charge , €,055 10,868
Insurance concentration risk charge 17.924 20678
Asset rigk charge 5018 4,000
Asset concentration rigk charge - -
Operational risk charge ) 2,188 2,823
Aggregation benefit- (3,586) {3,025)
Prescribed capital amount 30,599 35,434
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Unrecognised items

This section of the notes provides information about items that are not recognised In the financial siatements as
they do not {yet) satisfy the recognition critéria. .

9 Contingent assets and contingent liabilitles
Ne contingent assats or contingent liabilities existed as at 31 Dacember 2015 (2014; $nil).

10 Matters subsequent to the end of the financial year

No matter or circumstance has arisen since 31 December 2015 that has significantly affected or may significantly
affect:

+ the Company's operations; or
» theresults of those oparations; or
+  the Company's state of affairs.
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Other information

Thig section of the notes includes other information that must be disclosed to comply with the accounting
standards and other pronouncements, but that is not immediately refated to individual line items In the financlal
statements. .

11 Remuneration of auditors
During the year the following fees were paid or payable for services provided by the auditor of the Company:

{a) Audit and other assurance services

2015 2014
$ $
Amounts received or due and receivable by auditors of the Company (KPMG
Australia} for:
Audit and review of financial statemenis 52,015 99,020
Other assurance servicas:
APRA Return 22,971 31,585
AFSL Audit 4,113 5,655
Total remuneration for audit and other assurance services 119,089 136,260
{b} Non-audit services
T2015 2014
$ $
Amounts received or due and recsivable by auditors of the Company (KPMG
Australlz) for:
Actuarial External Peer Review - 44 620
Total remuneration for non-audil services - 44,820

Audit fees in 2015 and 2014 were paid by Latitude Financial Services Australia Heldings Pty Lid. and GE Capital
Finance Australia Pty Lid. respectively.

12 Key management personnel disclosures
The following persons were key management personnel of the Company at any time during the reporting period.

() Directors

Duncan Gerald West
JoAnne Maree Stephenson
Christopher Paul Knoblanche
Anna Elizabeth Gladman
Rachel Emma Cobb
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12 Key management personnel disclosures (continued)

(i) Ofher execulives

Aliessa Pritchard

Alexandra Yaniv (resigned 31 May 2015}
Rachel Penry

Drossos Haramantas (resigned 24 November 2015)
Ryan Kiss {resigned 17 Septambar 2015)

Kavin Smith (resigned 17 Aprit 2015)

Emma Robinscn (resigned 30 January 2015)
Julie Taylor

Karen Parkin {appointed 12 October 2015}

Cath Mortlock (appointed 13 June 2015)

Shelly Slater (appoiniad 15 March 2015}
Mercedes Colla (appointed 29 September 2015)

Key management personnel compensation

{continued)

In addition to their salaries, the Company and related parties also provided non-oash benefits which included long

sarvice leave and an employea share option plan.

20135 2014
$ . 8
Short-term employee benefits* 3,013,252 2,208,404
Long-term employee benefits . 249,804 209,423
Equity compensation benefits 1,420 24,471
3,264,476 2,443,298
There are no other fransactions with key management personne! (2014: $nil).
* The 2015 amount includes termination benefits of $265,989 (2014: $132,600)
13 Related party transactions
{a} Transactions with related parties
The following transactions occurred with related parties:
2015 2014
$ $
Management fees pald to/freceived from):
GE Capital Finance Australasia Pty Lid 12,031,497 12,623,501
Latitude Financial Services Australia Holdings Pty Lid 76,020 -
Hallmark Life Insurance Company Lid {2,280,035) {2,650,153)
GE Capital Corporation - 266,587
Cross charges paid fo:
GE Personal Finance Pty Ltd - 233,180
GE Capital Finance Australasia Pty Ltd 3,462,567 4,656,470
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{continuad)
13 Related party transactions (continued)
(a) Transactions with related parties {continuad)
2015 2014
$ $

Transacfional salgs costs paid to:

GE Capital Finance Australasia Pty Ltd 1,461,538 1,783,883

Latitude Financial Services Australia Holdings Pty Lid 330,791 -
Commission paid fo:

Avco Access Ply Lid - 204

GE Personal Finance Pty Ltd 2,185,504 2,896 619

Latitude Personai Finance Py Ltd 387,195 -

GE Capital Finance Australia 3,150,097 3,780,168

Latitude Finance Australia 310,485 -

GE Finance and Insurance {NZ} 2095321 2,939,008

Latituds Financial Services Ltd - NZ 217,432 -
Royally pald:

GE Capltal Registry, inc. 135,753 303,071
Dividend paidf{received)

Hafimark Life Insurance Company Ltd - shareholder - 103,000,000
(b} Outstanding balances with ralated partios

2015 2014
$ 3

Recelvables/(payables)

Avco Access Pty Lid - 193

GE Capital Finance Australasia Pty Ltd “ {1.375,347)

Latitude Financial Services Australia Holdings Pty Lid {2,103,340) -

GE Personal Finance Pty Ltd - 589,208

Latitude Personal Finance Piy Lid 1,219,945 -

Hallmark Life insurance Company Lid 179,073 3,052,220

GE Capital Finance Australia - 2,344,651

Latitude Finance Australia 1,583,286 -

GE Finance and Insurance {NZ) - 389,256

Latitude Financlal Services Ltd - NZ 1,185,874 -

GE Capital Holdings Partnership - (2,488,485}

No provisions for doubtful debts have been raised in relatlon 16 any outstanding balances, and no expense has
been recognised In respect of bad or doubtful debts due from refated parties.

At 31 December 2015, there are no amounts outstanding owed by Hallmark General Insurance Company Ltd to
Latitude Financial Services Ausiralia Holdings Pty Ltd or to other relaied parties which ara not reflected in the
accounts, and there are ne further amounts to be charged by Latitude Financial Services Australia Moldings Pty
Ltd or by other related parties In relation to services provided to Hallmark General Insurance Company Ltd during
2015 or prior years,
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14 Summary of significant accounting policies

Hallmark General Insurance Company Ltd 1s a company limited by shares, incorporaied and domiciled in
Australia.

The Company is registered under the nsurance Act 1973.

its registered office and principal place of business is:
Level 4

99 Walker Street

North Sydney NSW 2060

Australia

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stefed.

These financial statements are presented in Australian dollars, which is the Company's functional currency.
The financial statements were authorised for issue by directors on 17 March 2016.

{a) Basis of preparation
Statement of compllance

These general purpose financial statements cover the Company and its New Zealand branch and has been
prepared in accordance with Australian Accouniing Standards (AASBs) and interpretations Issued by the
Austrailan Accounting Standards Beard (AASB), and the Corparafions Act 2001. The financial statements afso
comply with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) and interpretations adopied by tha Internations|
Accounting Standards Board {IASB).

For the purposes of the financial statements, the Company is a for-profit entity.
Changes In accounting policies and disclosures

There has been no change in accounting policies for the current financial period that would have a materig!
impact on these financial statements.

Basis of measurement

These financlal staternents have been prepared on a fair value basis with certain exceptions as described in the
accounting policies below.

Critical estimates, Judgements and errors

The Company makes estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at year
end. Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are basad on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the clrcumstances. The

areas In which accounting estimates are applied are described below.
Key sources of estimation uncertalnty

The key area of estimation uncertainty for the Company is in its estimation of outstanding claims and reinsurance
recoveries. These are discussed in detall in note 2(f).

The ultimate liability arising from clalms made under insurance confracts

Provision is made at the year-end for the estimated cost of claims incurred but not settled at the end of the
reporting period, including the cost of claims Tncurred but not reported (1BNR}) to the Company.
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14 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
{a) Basls of preparation (continued)
The ultimata liability arising from claitns made under insurance contracts {continued}

The Company takes all reasonable sfeps to ensure that it has appropriate information regarding its claims
exposure. However, given the uncertainty in establishing claims provisions, it is likely that the final outcome will
prova to be different fram the original liabilty established.

The estimation of IBNR |s generally subject to a greater degree of uncertainty than the estimation of the cost of
settling claims already notified to the Company, where more information about the claim event is generally
available. In calculating the estimated cost of unpaid claims the Company uses a variety of eslimation
techniques, generally based upon siatistical analyses of historical experience, which assumes that the
development paitern of the current claims will be conslistent with past experfence. Allowance is made, however,
for changes or uncertainties which may create distortions in the underlying statistics or which might cause the
cost of unsettled claims to increase or reduce when compared with the cost of previously settled claime Including:

changes in the economic environment
changes In the mix of business

medical and technological developments
changes in benefit structures

changes In claims management practice

Provisions are calculated gross of all recoveries. A separate estimate is made of the amounts that will be
recoverable from decreasing adjustments and from reinsurers based upon the gress provisions. The decreasing
adjustments ara estimated as 1/11th of gross outstanding clalms liabitity.

The methods used to analyse past claims experience and fo project future claims experience are largely
determined by the available data and the nature and maturity of the portfolio.

The determination of an appropriate outstanding claims liability and the speciflc assumptions used are detailed in
note 6.

{b) Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. The Cormnpany recognises
revenua from non-insurance activities when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company
and the revenue amount can be refiably measured. The Company bases its estimates on historical resulis, taking
Into consideration the type of customer, the type of transaction and the specifics of sach arrangement. In
addition, the foliowing specific recognition criteria apply to revenue streams:

(] Premium revenue

Premium revenue comprises amounts charged to policyholders (direct premium) for Insurance contracts,
excluding stamp duties and {axes collected on behalf of third parties, including the goods and services tax in
Australia.

Premium revenue is recognised in the profit or loss when & has been earned. it is recognised as eamed from the
date of attachment of rigk (generally the date a confract is agreed to but may be earfier if persuasive evidence of
an arrangement exists) over the period of the related insurance contracts in accordance with the pattern of the
incidence of risk expected under the contracts, The pattern of the risks underwritten is generally matched by the
passing of time but where tfme dees not approximate the pattern of risk, previous daims sxperience is used fo
. derive the incidencs of risk. ]

Premium for unclosed business (business written close o maporting date where attachment of risk is prior to
reporting date and there is Insufficient Information to acourately identify the business) is brought to account based
on previous experience with due allowance for any changes in the pattern of new business and renewals.

The uneamed portion of premium is recognised within uneamed premium liability in the Statement of Financial
Position.
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14 Summary of significant accounting policles (continued)
{b) Revenue recognition (continued)

(i} Investment income

All investment incoma s recognised as revenue on an accruals basls. Interest income is recognised on a time
proportion basls using the simple Interest method. Dividends are brought to account as deciared and are
recognised net of franking credits. Assets are designeted at fair value through profit or loss and the related net
realised and unrealised gains and losses are included in the profit or loss as investment revenue.

{c} Claims expenses

The Company's claims liability is measured as the present value of expected future payments relating to clalms
incurred at the reporting date. The expected future payments include those estimates in relation fo claims
incurred but not encugh reported (IBNER's) and claims incurred but not reported (IBNR's) based on past
axperience.

Claims incurred all relate to providing services, including the bearing of rigk, and are accordingly freated as
axpenses in the profit or loas. Claima expenses represent total claim payments made during the year adjusted for
the movement in the outstanding claims liability.

Tha claims liability is measured based on the advice of valuations perdformed by the appointed actuary whose key
assumptions are outlined In note 6.

(d) Other expenses .
Cther expenses are recognised in the profit or loss on an accrual basis.
(e} Outwards reinsurance premium

Premium ceded to reinsurers is recognised as an expense in accordance with the pattem of reinsurance service
received. Accordingly, a portion of outwards reinsurance premium Is treated at the reporting date as deferred
reinsurance expense. Reinsyrance recaveries on claims incurred are recognised as revenue,

{f) Deferred acquisition costs

Costs, which vary with and are primarily related to the production of new business, have been deferred to the
axtent such costs ere deemed recoverable from future profits. Such costs primarily include commissions. These
costs are amortised in propottion to premiums over the estimated lives of the policies. A write down {o
recoverable amount is recognised where the present value of expected future claims (including settiement costs)
in relation to business written to the end of the reporting period exceeds related uneamed premiums less the
deferred acquisition costs.

(g) Income tax

Australian company

Income 1ax in the profit or loss for the periods presented comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax is
recognised in the profit or loss excapt to the extent that it relates to items racognised directly in equity.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantially enacted at the balance date, and any adjustment {0 tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet method, providing for temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilites for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for {axation
purposes.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow the manner in which the
Gompany expects, at the end of the reporting period, 10 recover or seltle the carrying amount of its assets and
lizbilities.
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14 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(9) Income tax (continued)

A defarred tax asset [s recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be avallable
against which the asset can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reduced 1o the extent that it is no longer probable
that the relaied tax benefit will be realised.

Deferred tax assets and liabllities are recognised on a gross basis, and presented net if the Company has a
legally enforceable right 1o set off current tax assets and liabilities. Current tax assets and tax liabiliies are offsat
where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and Intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise
the asset and settle the llability simultaneously.

Tax consclidation

On 24 November 2015, the Company exited from the GE Capital Holdings Parinership income tax consclidated
group. Prier to its exit from the GE Capital Holdings Partnership income tax consolidated group, the Company
paid to GE Capital Holdings Parinership a clear exit payment which was determined in accordance with the
group’s Tax Sharing Agresment.

On 25 November 2015, the Company joined the KVD Australia Holdco Pty Lid income tax consolidated group.
The KVD Australia Holdco Pty Lid income tax consolidated group incorporates the Company, Hallmark General
Insurance Company Lid and several other related enfities.

The current and deferred tax amounts for the consolldated group are allocated amongst the entities in the group
using = separate taxpayer within the group approach whereby each entity in the income tax consolidated group
measures its current and deferred taxes as if it continued 1o be a separaie taxable entity in its own right, after
deducting intercompany dividends, the benefit of any capital losses brought forward and intercompany debt
forgiveness transactions.

The members of the KVD Australia Holdco Pty Ltd income tax consolidated group have entered info a tax funding
agreement which sets out the funding cbligations of the members of the income tax consolidated group in respect
of tax amounts. The tax funding agreement was executed on 23 November 2015 and the Company was
subsequenily added. Under the tax funding agreement, where the member of the income tax consolidated group
recognises 3 taxable loss, the funding amount Is nil with no compensation for the tax losses unless the member
is subjeci fo prudential regulation by APRA, in which case the regulated entity will be compensated for its tax
losses.

The liabilities arising for the member under a tax funding agresment are recognised as amounts payahle to KVD
Australia Holdco Pty Lid income tax consclidatad group. Any difference between the net tax amounis recognised
on & separate taxpayer within the group approach and the actual tax funding agreement amount payable Is
treated as an equity transacilon,

The members of the KD Australia Holdco Pty Lid income tax consolidated group have entered into a tax sharing
agreement under the tax consolidation legislation which sets out the allocation of income tax liabilities between
the entities should the head eniity default on its tax payment obligations and removes the exposure of the
Company to jaint and several liability in the event of such default. The tax sharing agreement was executed on 23
November 2015 and the Company was subsequently added.

New Zealand branch

Tax-effect accounting is applied using the liability method whareby tax is recognised as an expense and is
calculated after allowing for permanent differences. To the extent that differances occur between the time items
are recognised In the financial staternents and when items are {sken into account in determining taxable income
(timing differences), the related future taxation benefit and deferred income tax [ability are disclosed as a
defaerred tax asset and a deferred tax liability, respectively.

Taxatlon basis
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14 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
{g) Income tax (continued)

New Zealand branch {continued)
Taxatlon basis (continued)

As the Branch is a non-resident, for tax purposes, general insurer in New Zealand it is taxed on 10% of its New
Zealand sourced gross premium income. Deductions for expenditure are not allowed. A non-resident withholding
tax of 10% or approved issuer levy of 2% applies to any New Zealand saurced interest income on investments.

{h} Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpase of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits held
at call with financial institutions and other shori-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three
months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash.

(i) Trade and other recalvables

All premium and other receivables ara recognised at the amounts receivable as these amounts are generally due
for settlement within 30 days and less, whare applicahle. any provision for doubtful debts. Collectability of
premium and other receivables is reviewed on an ongoing basis. Debts which are known to be uncollectnble are
written off in the pariod in which thay are identified.

(i) Reinsurance and other recoveries receivable

Reinsurance and other recoveries receivable on paid claims, reported claims not yet paid and IBNR's are
recognised as revenue. Recoveries receivable are assessed in a manner similar to the assessment of the liability
for outstanding claims and policy labllities.

(k) Classification of Insurance contracts

Contracts under which the Company accepts significaint insurance risk from the policyholder or anacther party by
agresing to compensate the policyholder or cther beneficiary i a specified uncertaln future event adversely
affects the policyholder or other beneficiary, are classified as insurance contracts. The risks associated with
Insurance contracts are detalled further in note 8(a).

(1) Assets backing general insurance llabliitles

The Company currently mairtains a significant capital surplus. The Company has established a target capital to
ensure assets are available to mest insurance llabllities.

{m} Financlal assets

The Campany has elacted to designate all its financial assels backing insurance policies at fair value through
profit or loss congistent with the provisions of AASB 139 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement.

Financizl assets designated at fair vatue through profit or loss and are inltially recognised &t fair value, excluding
transaction costs, which are expensed in the profit or loss in the period in which they arise. Financtal assets are
subsequently measured at fair value at each reporting date with realised and unraalised gains and |csses arising
from changes in the fair value recognised in the profit or loss in the pericd in which they arise.

Classification
{0 Short lerm deposits

Short term deposits are carried at the face value of the amounts deposited as their carrying amourts approximate
ta their fair value.
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14 Summary of significant accounting policies {continued)
(m) Financial assets [continued)

(i) Unlisted fixed inferest securifies

Unlisted fixed interest securities are recorded at amounts based on valuations using rates of interest aquivatent
to the yields obiainable on comparable investrnents at the end of the reporting period.

All financial Instruments are required to be further categorised under AASB 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures,
according to the availability of observable market inputs used in the measurement of their fair values, which is
detailed further in note 2{h).

{n) Iimpairment of assets

The carrying amount of tha Company's non-financlal assets, olher than deferred tax asseis, are assessed
annually for indicators of impaiment, if any such indicator exists, than the assel's recoverable amount is
agtimated.

An impalrment loss is recognised when the carrying amount of an asset exceeds lis recoverable amount.
Recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less cost of disposal and value in use. Impairment
losses are recognised in the profit or loss, unless an asset has previously been re-valued, in which case the
impairment loss s récognised as a reversal {o the extent of that previous revaluation with any excess recognised
through the profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount is increased 1o the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the Increaged carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment is recognised immediately in the profit or loss.

{o) Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables rapresent liabilities for goods and services pravided to the Company prior to the end of
the financial year, which are unpald, The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within 90 days of
recognition,

{p) Outstanding claims lability

The fiability for outstanding claims covers the expected future payments for claims including IBNR and IBNER
claims and the anticipated direct and indirect costs of setiling these claims.

The liability for outstanding claims is subject to vearly actuarial review. The general approach to the actuarial
estimation of outstanding ¢laims is to analyse all avallable past experience. Based on this, the expected future
paymentis arse determined and discounted to present value using a risk free rate.

The provision for the outstanding claims liability also contains a risk margin tc raflect the inherent uncertainty in
the central estimate. The sk margln Increasses the probability that the net llabllity Is adequately provided for to a
90% {2014: 80%:} confidence level.

(q)} Liakility adequacy test

The adequacy of the insurance contract liabilities are evaluated each year. The insurance contract test considers
current estimates of all contractual and rolated cash flows. If it is determined using best estimate assumptions
that a shortiali exists, it is immediately recognised in the profit or loss. Refer to note 2(i%v).
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Hallmark General Insurance Company Ltd
Notes to the financial statements

For the year ended 31 December 2015
(continued)

14 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

{r} Unexpired risk liability

Provision is made for unexpired risks arising from general insurance business where the expected value of
claims and sxpenses attributed to the unexpired perods of policies In force at the end of the reporting period
exceeds the unearned premiums provision tn relafion to such policies after the deduction of any deferred
acquisition costs. The provision for unexpired risk is calcufated separately by refarence to separate classes of
business, which aré managed logether, after taking iniv account the relevant investment return.

Unexpired risk fiability, if any, remaining after writing off deferred acquisition costs is recognised immediately in
the profit or 10ss. Refer to note 2(f{v).

(s) Employee benefits

() Short lerm employea benellls

The provisions for employee entitlements to wages, salarles and annual leave expected to be settied wholly
within 12 months of yaar end represents the amount which the Company has a present cbligaiion to pay resulting
from employees’ services provided up to the belance date. The provisions have been calculated at undiscounted
amounis based on wage and salary rates that the Company expects to pay including related on-costs.

(i) Othsr long-ferm employes benefif obligafions
The liability for employees entitled 1o long service leave represents the present value of the estimated future cash
outflows to be made by the Company resulting from employees’ services provided up fo the balance date.

Liabilities for employee entitiements, which are not expected 1o ba wholly settled within 12 months, are
discouniad using the rates attaching to Australian Commonwealth Government securities at balance date, which
most closely match the terms of maturity of ihe related hiabilities.

In determining the liabfiity for employes entiflements, consideration has been glven to future increases in wage
and salary rates, and the Company's experience with staff tenure. Related on-costs have also been included in
the liahility.

{ifi) Defined coniribulion plans

For defined contribution plans, the Company has ne further payment obligations once the contributions have
been paid. The contributions are recognised as other staff expenses when they are dus.

(t) Foreign currency translation and functional currency

Functlonal and presentstion currency

ftems Included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the cumrency of the primary
econemic environment in which the Company oparates (the functional currency).

The financlal statements are presented In Australian dollars, which is the functionat and presentation currency for
the Company.

Transactons and balances

Foreign currency transactions are transiajed into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the fransactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the seftlement of such
transactions and from the translation af year end exchange rates of monetary assets and fiabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are recognised in the profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates
at the date when the fair value was defermined.

Translation differences on financial Instruments carried at fair value are reported as part of the fair value gain or
loss.



Hallmark General Insurance Company Ltd
Notes to the financial statements

For the year ended 31 December 2015
{cantinued)

14 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

{t} Foreign currency translatlon and functional currency {continued}
Transactions and balances (continued)

The results and financial position of the branch of the Company that has a functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the presentation currency as follows:

The results and financial pesftion of the branch of the Company that has a functional currency different from the
presantation currency are translated inte the presentation currency as follows:

« assets and liabilites arg translated at the closing rate at the reporting date

+ income and expenses are translated at average exchange rales (unless this Is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates prevalling on the fransaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the dates of the transactions); and

+  all resulting exchange differences are recegnised in other comprehensive income, and accumulated in a
separate component of equlty.

(u) Goods and services tax {G3T)

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of goods and service tax (Gsﬁ. axcapt where
the amount of GST incurred is not recoverable from the Australian Texation Qffice (ATQ). In these circumstances
the GST is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense.

Receivables and payables are stated inclusive of GST. The net amount of GST recaverable from, or payable to,
the tax authorties (i.e. ATO and IRD} Is included as a current asset or liability in the statement of financial
position.

Cash flows are presented on a gross basis. The GST components of cash flows arising from Investing or
financing activities which are recoverable from, or payable to, the tax authorities, are dassified as operating cash
flows.

(v} Rounding of amounts

The Company is of a kind referred to in Class Order 88/100, issued by the Australlan Securities and Investments
Commission, relating to the rounding off of amounts in the financial statements. Amounts in the financial
statements have been rounded off in accordance with that Class Order to the nearast thousand dollars, or in
certain cases, tha nearest doliar.

{w) New accounting standards and interpretations

A number of new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations are effective for annual periods
_beginning after 1 January 2015, and have nol been applied in preparing these financial statements. None of
these is expected to have a significant effect on the financial statements of the Company, except for:

- AASB 9 Financial Instruments, which becomes mandatory for the Company's 2018 financial stalements and
could change the classification and measurement of financial assets. The Company does not plan to adopt this
standard early and the extent of the impact has not been determined.

- AASB 15 Revenus from contracts with customers, which becomes mandatory for the Company's 2018 financial
statements, provides a new 5 step model for recognising revenue eamed from a confract with & customer and will
replace the existing AASE 118 Revenue. The Company does not plan to adopt this standard early and the extent
of the impact has not been determined,
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Hallmark Ganeral insurance Company Ltd
Directors' declaration
31 December 2015

Directors' Declaration
In the opinion of the Directors of Hallmark General {insurance Company Ltd (the Company):

(@) thofinancial statements and notes set out on pages 5 to 47 are in accordance with the Corporations Act
2001, including:

W giving a true and fair view of the Company's financial position as at 31 December 2015 and of its
performance for the financial year ended on that date; and

(i) complying with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Regulations 2001;

(b} thefinancial statements also comply with Intemational Finencial Reporting Standards as disclosed In note
14; and

{c) thereare reasonable graunds to believe that the Company will be able to pay its debis as and when they
become due and payable.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of directors:

17 March 2016

.

Anna Elizabeth Gladman {(Managing Director)
Director

Sydney

17 March 2016
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of Halimark General Insurance
Company Lid

Report on the financial report

We have audited the accompanymg financial report of Hallmark General Insurance Company
Lid (the Company), which comprises the Staternent of Financial Position as at 31 December
2015, and the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income, Statement of
Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended on that date, notes 1 to 14
comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information and
the directors’ declaration.

Directors’ responsibility for theﬁnancial report

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the financial report that
gives a true and fair view in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the
Corporations Act 2001 and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of the financial report that is free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error. In note 14, the directors also state, in accordance with Australian
Accounting Standard AASB 101 Presentation of Financial Statements, that the financial
statements comply with International Financial Reporting Standards.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Austraiian Auditing Standards. These Auditing
Standards require that we comply with relevant ethical requirements relating to andit
engagements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial
repart is free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial report. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement,
incloding the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether
due to fraud or error. kn making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair view in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
repoit. :

We performed the procedures to assess whether in all material respects the financial report
presents fairly, in accordance with the Corporarions Act 2001 and Australian Accounting
Standards, a true and fair view which is consistent with our understanding of the Company’s
financial position and of its performance.
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropnate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

Independence

In conducting our audif, we have complied with the independence requirements of the
Corporations Act 2001.

Auditor's opinion

In our opinion:

(a)the financial report of Hallmark Genefal Insurance Company Ltd is in accordance with the
Corporations Act 2001, including:

«(i) giving a true and fair view of the Company’s financial position as at 31 December 2015
and of its performance for the year ended on that date; and

(ii)complying with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporationé Regulations 2001.

(b)the financial report also complies with International Financial Reporting Standards as
disclosed in note 14,

ke

KPMG

[/ 7

Andrew Reeves
Partner

Sydney
17 March 2016
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680 George Street Fax: +61 2 9248 5959
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The Board of Directors 29 March 2016
Hallmark General Insurance Company Ltd

Level 4, 99 Walker Street

Morth Sydney NSW 2060

Halimark General Insurance Company Ltd:
Appointed Actuary signoff of financial statements and financial condition as at
31 December 2015 for New Zealand reporting purposes

Dear Directors

Hallmark General Insurance Company Ltd ("HGIC") is an Australian authorised insurer regulated by the
Australian Prudential Regulatory Authority ("APRA™) and has a licence issued by the Reserve Bank New
Zealand ("RBNZ'™).

On 19 September 2014, HGIC appointed me, Richard Yee of Ernst & Young to be HGIC's Appeinted
Actuary. The Appoinied Actuary role is as described by the Insurance Act 1973, related Prudential
Standards and Prudential Practice Guides current at 31 December 2015, and by the New Zealand
Insurance (Prudential Supervision} Act 2010 (the Act). | have no relationship with HGIC other than being its
Appainted Actuary.

It is the responsibility of the Appointed Actuary to provide advice to the Board of a general insurer on the
value of its insurance liabilities and the preparation of the actuarial information contained in its financial
statements. The Appointed Actuary must provide written advice to the Board of the insurer on the value of
insurance liabilities in accordance with APRA's Prudential Standard GP5320, Actuarial and Related
Matters.

As part of my responsibilities, | have produced a report on HGIC's insurance liabilities and financial
condition, the Financial Candition Report (FCR), as at 31 December 2015, dated @ March 2016. The scope
of the FCR is to provide the Board and management with an objective assessment of the financial condition
of the Australian and New Zealand business within HGIC as at 31 December 2015. The FCR identifies and
assesses the material risks facing HGIC and includes discussion of relevant risk mitigants.

| have relied upon the general completeness and accuracy of this data and information supplied by HGIC
without independent verification. However, | have reviewed the information for reasonableness and
consistency with my knowledge of the financial services industry.

The RBNZ has exempted HGIC from compliance with their Solvency Standard for Non-life Insurance
Business. This exemption has been granted subject to various conditions, including obligations of the
Appointed Actuary. These obligations are addressed below. Where relevant and appropriate, | have
commented on total HGIC Company level results and also separately in relation to the results of the New
Zealand Branch of HGIC.

Financial Statements - HGIC Company

Section 77 of the Act requires a review by the Appointed Actuary of the actuarial information in the
financial statements of the company and in particular:

a. Unearned premium liahility and liability adequacy test
b. Net outstanding claims liability

¢. Reinsurance and any other recovery assets

Llabillty limited by a scheme approved
under Professional Standards Legislation
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d. Deferred acquisition cost or deferred fee revenue

2. Any other information deemed by the Appointed Actuary to warrant actuarial review for the
purpose of profit or solvency reporting

Section 78 of the Act reguires that the Appointed Actuary prepare a report in respect of the review reguired
under Section 77. | confirm that this FCR and my ILVR meets the requirements of section 78 of The Act, and
contains my advice regarding the net premium liabilities, liabllity adequacy test, net outstanding claims
liabilities, reinsurance and any other recovery assets, and deferred acquisitior costs.

| have previously reviewad the earning patterns adopted by HGIC and consider them to be appropriate. For
the current ILVR | have also checked the unearned premium calculation performed by HGIC for certain
product types and the calculations appear to be reasonable.

in my opinion and from an actuarial perspective:

a. The actuarial information contained in the HGIC financial statements has been appropriately
included in those statements; and

b. The actuarial information has been used appropriately in the preparation of the HGIC financial
statements.

| have obtained all information and explanations that | have required. | am not éware of any other information
that warrants actuarial review for the purpose of profit or solvency reparting.

Financial Condition Report

The Appointed Actuary must prepare a Financia!l Condition Report which must:

a. Idertify and describe the material risks (of which it is reasonable to expect the appointed actuary to be
aware) facing a licensed insurer that, In the appointed actuary's opinion, pose a threat to the licensed
insurer's ability to meet its solvency requirements now and in the future, and where practicable
quantify such risks

b. Comment on the steps taken or proposed by the licensed insurer to address the risks identified in (a)

c. Comment separately on the New Zealand business, these comments can be in line with Australian
requirements for financial condition reports

d. Advise the licensed insurer on whether in the Appointed Actuary's opinion, the licensed insurer needs
to consider reporting to the RBNZ under Section 24 of The Act, taking into account the licensed
insurer’s forward-looking assessment of the solvency standard and the appointed actuary’s assessment
of the licensed insurer’s business plans, its enterprise risk management practices and the external
environment. .

The Appointed Actuary in the financial condition report must comment on:

a. The solvency position of the insurer if a catastrophe or extreme event, such as outlined in the
Catastrophe Risk Capital Charge section of the Non-Life Standard, were to occur in New Zealand.

b. Any difference in the financial condition of the New Zealand Branch in comparison with the insurer as a
whole, which might have implications if the two were separated as a result of reguiatory action or
litigation.

The FCR identifies and assesses the material risks facing HGIC and includes mitigating factors addressing
those risks and therefore meets the requirements of Section 56(d) of the Act. The capital within HGIC is
equally accessible by both the Australian and New Zealand operations.

HGIC is in a very strong financial position as at 31 December 2015, with available capital exceeding the
target surplus. Capital requirements are expected to be met over the year and also in subsequent years,
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and hence no reporting under Section 24 of the Act is required. In my opinion HGIC is maintaining a
solvency margin consistent with the requirements under section 21(2) (b) of the Act. HGIC is not a life
insurer. As such no opinion under Section 78(h) of the Act is required.

This strong position means that HGIC would be able to withstand a catastrophe or exireme event similar to
the Catastrophe Risk Capital Charge.

The Australian and New Zealand operations of HGIC are managed in conjunction and | am not aware of any
differences in the financial condition of the New Zealand Branch in comparison with the insurer as a whole
which might have implications if the two were separated.

Yours sincerely,
/Q,./ﬁ_\// YW

Richard Yee, FIAA, FNZSA
Appointed Actuary, Hallmark General Insurance Company Ltd
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Hallmark General Insurance Company Ltd New Zealand Branch
Directors’ report
3 December 2015

The directors presant their report fogether with the financial statements of Hallmark General Insuranca Company
Lid New Zealand Branch far the year ended 31 Decamber 2015 and the auditor's report thereon.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the board of directars.

17 March 2016

A

Anna Elizabeth Gladman {Managing Direcior)
Director

Sydney

17 March 2016




Insurance premium revenue
Net insurance premium revenue

Claims expenses
Net claims incurred

Acquisition costs
Adminisiration expenses
Underwriting expenses

Undarwriting result

Investment income
invastment expenses
Other Income

Profit before income tax

Incoma tax expense
Profit far the year

Hallmark General Insurance Company Ltd New Zealand Branch
Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Ihcome
For the year ended 31 December 2015

Notes

1(a)

1b)

1c)

Ud)

Other comprehensive Income for the year, net of tax

Total comprehensive income for the year

Profit is attributable to:

Qwners of Hallmark General Insurance Company Lid New Zealand

Branch

Total comprahensive income for the year is attributable to:
Ovwners of Hallmark General insurance Company Lid New Zealand

Branch

2015 2014
$'000 $000
18,976 18,691
18,976 18,691
2,676 2,798
2,676 2,798
4,111 4,103
8,042 5,865
10,153 9,968
6,147 5,025
1,204 1,205
(14) (16)
(121) 551
7,306 7,665
526 521
6,780 7,144
6,780 7,144
6,780 7,144
6,780 7,144
6,780 7,144
6,760 7,144

The above Stafomont of Profif or Loss and Other Comprehensive income should be read in conjunction with the

accompanying noles.
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ASSETS

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other raceivables
Current tax assels

Deferred acquisition costs
Total current assets

Non-current assets
Deferred acquisition costs
Total non-current assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES

Current Habilities

Trade and other payables
Current tax liabilitles
Quistanding claims liability
Unearned premium liability
Total current liabilities

Non-current liahilities
Cutstanding claims liability
Uneamed premium llability
Total non-current liabilities

Total liabllities
Net assets

EQUITY
Retained sarnings
Totel equity

Hallmark Genoral Insurance Company Ltd New Zealand Branch
Statement of Financial Posltion
As at 31 December 2015

Notes

2(a)
2(b)

2(c}

2(c)

2(d)

2(e)
2(n)

2(e)
2(f)

2015 2014
$'000 $7000
40,493 40,002
134 291
18 -
2,311 3,127
42 956 43,420
1,968 2,886
1,968 2,886
44,924 46,306
131 443
- 876
2,234 2,341
10,409 13,772
12,864 17,232
768 792
8,843 12,713
8,711 13,505
22,575 30,737
22,349 15,568
22,349 15,568
22,349 15,560

The above Stafoment of Financial Position should be read in conjunciion with the accompanying notes.
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Balance at 1 January 2014

Profit for the year
Total comprehensive income for the year

Balance at 31 December 2014

Balance at 1 January 2015

- Profit for the yaar
Total comprehensive income for the year

Balance at 31 Dacember 2015

Hallmark General Insuranca Company Ltd New Zealand Branch
Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 31 December 2015

Atiributable to owners of Hallmark
Gsneral Insuranca Company Ltd

New Zealand Branch

Retalned Total

earnings aquity
$000 $000
8,425 8,428
7,144 7144
7,144 7,144
15,569 15,569
15,669 15,668
8.780 6,780
6,780 6,780
22=349 22,349

The above Statement of Changes in Equify shoult! bs read In conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Hallmark General Insurance Company Lid New Zealand Branch
Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 31 December 2015

Cash fiows from opaorating activities

Net premiums recsived

Claims paid

Payments to suppliers and employees
Interest received

Net cash inflow from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
‘Payment io parent company .
Net cash Inflow/{outflow) from investing activities

Mot cash inflow from financing activities

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January
Cagh and cash equivalants at 31 Decembaer

The abovea stelement of Cash Flows should be read In conjunction with the accompanying notes.

5

2015 2014
Notes $'000 $000
11,934 15233
{2.807) (2,849)
{10,087 (9.789)
1,451 1,045
3(a) 491 3,840
- 5,963
- {5.963)
491 (2,123)
40,002 42,125
20,002

2Ha) 40,493



Hallmark General Insurance Company Ltd New Zealand Branch
Notes to the financlal statements
For the year ended 31 December 2013

Contents of the notes 1o the financial statements

Page
Financlal performanca 7
1 Profit or loss information
Balance sheet management
2 Financial agsets and financial llabilities
3 Cash flow information 13
Risk 13
4 Critical estimates, judgements and errors 13
5 Actuarial assumptions and methods 14
8 Firancial risk managernent 18
7 Capital managemant 22
Unrecognised items 25
8 Commitments and cantingencies 25
9 Mattars subsequent to the end of the financial year 25
Other information 25
10  Remuneration of auditors 25
Lk Key management personne) disclosures 25
12 Related party transactions 25
13 Summary of significant accounting policles 2




Halimark General Insurance Company Ltd New Zealand Branch
Notes to the financiat statements

For the year ended 31 December 2015

{continued)

Financial performance

This section provides additional infarmation about those individua line items in ihe financlal statements relating to
financial peformance that management considars most relevant in the context of the operations of the entity.

1 Profit or loss Information

{a) Net insurance premium revenue

2015 2014
$'000 $'000
Grogss written premium 11,932 14,091
Movement in unearned premiums 7.044 4,600
Outwards reinsurance premium expense - -
Net premium revenue 18,976 18,691
{b) Net clalms incurred
2015 2014
Current Year Prior Years Total Currant Year Prior Years Total
$000 %000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Gross claims incurred

and related expenges -

undiscounted 3,322 (665) 2,657 3,476 (668) 2,808
Discount and discount

movement - gross

claims incurred (37} 56 14 {53) 43 {10)
3,286 (609) 2,676 3,423 {625) 2,798
Net claims Incuired 3,285 (609} 2,676 3.423 {825) 2,798

Current period claims relate to risk borne in the current financial year. Prior period claims relate to a
reassazsment of the risks borne in all previgus financial years,

{c) Investment income

2015 2014

#0600 $'000
Interest income 1,294 1,205
Total investment income 1,254 1,205




Haflmark General Insurance Company Ltd Hew Zealand Branch
Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2015

{continued)
4 Profit or loss information {continued)
{d) Income tax expense
() Income tax expense
2015 2014
$'000 $'000
Current tax expense 531 624 .
(Over) provided in prior years _(5) (3)
Incomae tax expense 526 521
(i) Numerical reconciliation of income tax expense fo prima facie fax payable
2015 2014
$000 $'000
Profit from continuing operations before income tax expense 7,308 7,665
Tax at the New Zealand tax rate of 28% {2014 - 28%) 2,048 2,145
Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible (taxable) i i
in calculating taxable income:
Tax effect of non-assessable income {1,515) {1,622)
531 524
Adjustmeants for current tax of pricr periods ) (5) (3
Incomae tax expense 526 521

Balance sheet management

This section provides additional information about those individual line items in the stalement of financial position

that management considers most relevant in the context of the aperations of the entity.

2 Financial assets and financial liabilltles
(a) Cash and cash equivalents

2015 2014
00 $'000
Current assets o
Cash at bank 1,367 1,918
Short term deposits . 39,126 28,084
Total cash and cash squivalents 40,493 40,002




Hallmark General Insurance Company Ltd New Zealand Branch
Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2015

(continued)
2 Financlal assets and financial liabilitles {continued)
(b} Trade and other receivables
2015 2014
$000 $000
Current assets
Other recelvabiles 134 261
These balances include amounts receivable from related parties (note 12).
The carrying value disclosed above approximates fair value at end of the reporiing period.
{c) Deferred acquisition costa
2015 2014
$'900 $'000
Current assets
Deferred acqulsition costs 2,311 3127
Non-current assets
Deferred acquisition costs 1,968 2,888
Total deferred acquisition costs 4279 6,013
() Movements in deferred acquisition cosls
Movements in deferred acquisition costs wera as follows:
2015 2014
Deferved acquisition costs $'000 §'000
Balance at 1 January 6,013 6927
Acquisition costs incutred during the year* 855 1,463
Arnortisation charged to income* (2,389) (2,377)
Closing balance at 31 December 4,279 6,013

* Acquisition costs incurred during the year and Amortisation charged io Income relate to the Personal loans
partiolios (excludes Cards portfolios) as there were no deferred amortisation costs as at 37 December 2015 and
31 December 2014 for Cartds portfolios.

{d) Trade and other payables
2015 2014
$'000 $'000

Other payzables 131 443

The carrying value disclosed above approximates fair value at end of the reporting period.
These balances include amounts payable o related parties {note 12).



Hallmark General Insurance Company Ltd New Zealand Branch
Notes to the financial statements
For the year anded 31 December 2015

{continued)
2 FInancial assets and financlal liabilities {continued)
(8) Outstanding claims liability
20156 2014
$'000 F'o00
Ceniral estimate 2010 2,273
Risk margin 769 573
Claims handling expense ) 274 357
3,053 3,203
Discount {o present value (51) (70)
Cross outstanding claims Hability 3,002 3,133
Current 2,234 2,341
Mon-current 768 792
Total outstanding clalms liahility 3,002 3,133

{ The following ranges of discount rafes were used In the measurement of oufstanding claims and reinsurance
racoveries.

The current year discount rate is 2,65%
The subsequent years discount rate is 2.65%.

The weighted average expected term to seitlement of the outstanding claims from the end of the reporting peried
is estimated to be 0.64 years (2014: 0.73 years).

(i) Risk margin
PFrocess for defermining risk margin

The risk margin is an additional allowance for uncertainty in the ultimate cost of claims. The overall margin
adopted is determined by the board afler considering the uncertainty in the portfollo, Indusiry trends and the
branch's risk appetite. i

To determine the margin adopted, the appointed actuary has reviewed the factors impacting the portfolio o
establish a recommended margin at the leve! required by the board. Factors considered include:

«  variability of claims experience of the portiolio;

« quality of historical data;

= diversification between different classes within the portfolio; and

« increase In uncertainty dus to future economic environment and legisiative changes.

The level of uncerlainty varies between classes of business, as such the adopted risk margin varies batwaen
business classes. The risk margin is applied fo the gross central estimate.

The aggregate risk margin, after diversification allowance, is intended to achieve a 80% (2014: 90%) probability
of sufficiency.

The risk margins applied to the major segments of the portfolio for 90% (2014: 20%) level of adeguacy are:

2015 2014

$'000 $000
Consumer ¢cradit insurance - disability 26.7% 19.7%
Consumer credit insurance - unemployment 60.7% 45.9%

i0



Hallmark General Insurance Company Ltd New Zealand Branch
Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2015

{continued)
2 Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)
{e) Outstanding claims liability (continued)
() Reconciliation of movement in discounied outstending clafims lability
Accident Year Ending 31 December
2015 2014

Gross Relnsurance  Net Gross  Relnsurance Net

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $000 $'000
Balance at 1 January ) 3,133 - 3,133 2,984 - 2,984
Current year claims ncurred 3,285 - 3,288 3,423 - 2,423
Change in previous years claims (609) - (609) (625) - {625)
Current year clalms paid /
reinsurance racovered (1,007) - (1,007) (857) - {857)
Pravious year claims paid /
reinsurance recovered {1,800) - {1,800) {1,692} - (1,692}
Closing balance at 31 December 3,002 - 3,002 3,133 - 3,133

(iv) Claims development tables

Claims davslopment tables are disclosed in order to put the claims estimate included in the financlal statements
into context, allowing comparison of those claim astimates with the results seen in previous years. In sffect, the
table highlights the branch's ability to provide a reliable estimate of the total value of claims. The top part of the
1able provides a review of current estimates of cumulative claims and demonstrates how the estimated claims
have changed at subsequent reporting or accident year-ands. The lewer part of the table provides a reconcillation
of the total reserve Included in the Statemant of Financial Position and the estimates of cumulative claims.

Gross Ullimate Claims Cost

Reporting Year

Estimate of gross ultimate claims cost
At end of accident year

One yeoar later

Two vears later

Three years later

‘Four years later

Five years later

Six years later

Current esfimate of cumulative claims
Cumulative payments to date
Undiscounted claims handling expenses
Gross outstanding claims - undiscounted
Discount impact

Gross outstanding clalms - discounted
Nef ultimats claims cost

2011 and
prior
$'000

1,129
1,308
1,416
396
184
1,540
{1,540}

2012 2013 2014 2015 Total
$'000 $000 $000  $°000 $'000

3,184 3328 3132

2217 2,218 2,946 -
2140 2217 - -
2,182 - - -

2182 2217 2,846 3132 12,017
(2,124) (2,105) (2,448} (1.021) (9,238)
6

11 52 206 274

64 123 560 2316 3,063
(1) (3 (0 @Gn (51)

11
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Haflmark General Insurance Company Ltd New Zealand Branch
Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2015

{continued)
2 Financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)
(e} Outstanding claims liabiiity (continued)
{iv) Cleims development tables (continued)
2011 and

Reporting Year prior 2012 2013 2014 2015 Total

$000 $°000  $°000 $°000  $'000 $000
Estimate of net ultimate claims cost
At end of accident year 3,184 3328 3,132
One year later ‘ - 2217 2,218 2,948 -
Two years lates 1,129 2,140 2217 - -
Three years later 1,308 2,182 - - -
Four years later 1,418 - - - -
Current estimate of cumulafive claims 1,540 2,182 2,217 2,946 3,132 12,017
Cumulative payments to date (1.540) (2,124) (2,105) (2,448) ({1,021) (9,238)
Undiscounted claims handling expenses - 6 11 52 205 274
Net cutstanding claims - undiscounted - 64 123 550 2,316 3,053
Discount impact - (1) {3 {10} (37) (s1)
Net outstanding claims - discounted - 63 120 540 2,278 3,002

{v} Liability adequacy test

The liability adequacy test (LAT} is an assessment of the carrying amount of unearned premium liabilities and is
conducted at the end of each reporting peried. The fest is calcuiated separately for each portfolio of contracts that
are subject to broadly similar risks and are managed together as a single portfolio.

For the purposes of the liability adequacy test, the net premium liabilities at a 75% probability of sufficiency as at
31 Decamber 2015 is $12,475,017 (31 December 2014: $17,194,018), therefore the liability adequacy test at
reporting date resuliad in a surpius for the branch.

All actuarial data relating 10 the New Zealand Branch of the Company, prior to the 5th of March 2012, relates to

the insurance portfolic of Simply Insurance New Zealand Limited, and is disclosed to reflect the historical
actuarial profile of the insurance portfolio, which was transferred to the Branch on the 5th of March 2012,

(f} Uneamed premium lability

2015 2014

$'000 $'000
Balance as at 1 January ’ 26,485 31,085
Premiums writlen during the year* 2814 5,402
Premiums earned during the year* (9,857) (10,002)
Closing balance as at 31 Decamber 19,442 28,485
Cumrent ' 10,499 13,772
Nen-current 8,943 12713
Total unearned premium liability 19,442 26,485

* Premiums written and eamned during the year relate to the Personal loans porifolios (excludes Cards portfolios)
as there were no unearned premium Jiabilites as at 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014 for Cards
portfolias.

{g} Fair value measurement
There are no financial assets measurad at fair value as at 31 December 2018, (2014; nil)
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Hallmark General Insurance Company Ltd New Zealand Branch
Notes to the flnancial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2015

{continued)
3 Cash flow information
(a) Reconcillation of profit after income tax to net cash flows from operating actlvities
2015 2014
£000 $000
Profit for the year 6,780 7,144
Adjustments
Change In cperating assets and liabilities: ) . )
(Increase)/decrease in trade debtors . 1,143
(Decrease)iincrease in trade and other payables : {312) (6,631)
(Increase) decrease in other recaivakbles 157 : (160}
Decrease/(increase) in deferred acquisition costs 1,734 914
Incraase/ (decrease) in outstanding claim liabllity (131) 149
{Decrease)fincrease in uneamed premium liability {7,043} (4 600)
(Decreasa)increase in curent tax liability - (694) {82)
Payments tof (advances from) parent company - 5,963
Net cash {(outflow)! Inflow from operating activities 491 3,840
Risk

This sectlon of the notes discusses the branch's exposura to varlous risks and shows how these could affect the
branch's financial position and performance.

4 Critical estimates, jJudgements and errors

The branch makes estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at year
end. Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and cther
factors, including expectations of fulure events that are believad {o be reasonable under the circumstances. The
areas in which accounting estimates are applied are described below.

Key sourcaes of estimation uncertainly

The key area of estimation uncertainty for the branch is in its estimation of outstanding claims and reinsurance
recoveries. These are discussed in detail in note B.

The ultimate fiabillty srising frorm claims made under insurance coniracis

Provision is made at the year-end for the estimated cost of claims incurred but not settled at the end of the
reporting period, including the cost of IBNR's 1o the branch.

The branch takes all reasonable steps to ensure that it has appropriate information regarding its claims exposure.
However, given the uncertainty in establishing claims provisions, It is iikely thai the final cutcome will prove o be
different from the criginal liability established.

The estimation of IBNR is gensrally subject to a greater degree of uncertainty than the estimation of the cost of
settling claims already notified to the branch, where more information about the claim event is generally available.
In calculating the estimated cost of unpaid claims the branch uses a variety of estimation techniques, generally
based upon statistical analyses of historical experience, which assumes that the development pattern of the
current claims will be consistent with past experience. Allowance is made, however, for changes or uncertaintiss
which may create distortions in the underlying statistics or which might cause the cost of unsettled claims to
increase or reduce when compared with the cost of previously settled claims including:

+ changes in the economic environment
« changes in the mix of business
« maedical and technological developments

13
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Hallmark General Insurance Company Ltd New Zealand Branch
Notes to the financlal statements

For the year anded 31 Decamber 2015

{continued)

4 Critical estimates, jJudgements and errors (continued)

The ultimaie liabiiity arising from claims made under insurance conlracis (confinued)

= changes in benefit structures
+ changes in claims management practice

Provisions are calculated gross of all recoveries. A separate estimafe is made of the amounts that will be
recoverable from decreasing adjustments and from reinsurers based upon the gross provisions. The decreasing
adjustments are estimatad as 1/11th of gross outstanding claims Lability.

The methods used to analyse past claims experience and 1o profect future claims experience are largely
determined by the available data and the nature and maturity of the parifofio.

The determination of an appropriate outstanding claims liability and tha specific assumptions used are detailed in
note 5.

§ Actuarial assumptions and methods

Impact of changes to valuation approach and key assumptions
The branch wiites the following lines of business:

Consumer credit Insurances

The risks covered In thig group include:

+ Involuntary unemployment

» Disability

+ Merchandise and price protection
+  Stolen card cover

During 2007, the Company ceased writing policies categorised as hire purchase insurance and personal loan
insurance (“old products”) and commenced writing a new consumer credit insurance product (“new products”,
fror August 2007). As of 31 December 2013, no liability has been projected for "old producis” with ail policies
expired. Since May 2011, the Company has offered several credit card halance protection products which
provide caver for disability, unemploymant and merchandise protection, price protection and siclen cards cover.

Effective 5 March 2012, the insurance business of Simply Insurance New Zealand (SINZ), a partner company
within the GE Capltal Group, was transferred into Hallmark General Insurance Company Lid. This business now
operates as a branch In New Zealand.

From 25 November 2015, HGIC transitioned to new ownership under the terms of the purchase agreement
betwean KKR, Deutsche Bank and Varde Partners, and GE Capital, trading under the name Latitude Financial
Services.

Process used to determine outstanding claims Habilities (actuarial mathods)

The general approach to actuardal estimation of Insurance Habilities Is to analyse available past experience,
including numbers of reported and finalised claims, amount of claim payments, changes in case estimates and
ircurred loss ratios. This analysis allows patterns to be identified in the past experience. Based on this,
development patterns associated with the run-off of outsiending claims and premium liabilities at the balance
date can be astimated.

The determination of cutstanding claims liabilities involves two steps:

The determination of the central estimate of culstanding clalms at the balance date. The central estmate of
outstanding claims includas an allowanca for IBNR clairme and the further development of IBNER's.

The central estimate has no deliberate bias towards either over or under estimation. Generally speaking, this
means that the central estimate is assessed 10 have a 50% ¢hance of adequacy.

14



Hallmark General Insurance Company Ltd New Zealand Branch
Notes to the financial statements

For the year endad 31 Dacember 2015

{continued)

5 Actuarial assumptions and methods (continued)

(i) The determination of a risk margin and claims handling expense provision to be added {0 the central estimates of
ouistanding claims.

The estimation of cuistanding claims labilities has been performed separately for each of the claim types arising
under the different policies, namely: desth, disability, material damage, unemployment and merchandise
protection, price protection and stolen cards.

Disability and unemplioymant (except credit cards)

In determining the ceritral estimiate of the outstanding claims liabillties, separate analyses were performed on the
open {including pending) claims and IBNR claims.

The individual claimant projection method was adopted for the open and pending claims. Claim payments have
been projected from the valuation date untdl the end of the policy term, taking into account the probability of
termination and limits to claim payments as stipulated in the policy. The claim payments are based on the
menthly loan Instalments for sach individual claim. For pending claims, an acceptance rate assumplion is also
applied in the valuation.

For IBNR. claims, the ceniral estimate of the outstanding claims liability was based on an estimated number of
IBNR claims and average claim sizes. The number of IBNR claims was based on analysis of claim numbers for
lines of business in runoff and analysis of claim frequency for line of business currently underwritten. The
average claim size is estimated from expected average iotal duration and average monthly benefits, with policy
desipn taken into account. For example, the consumer credit Insurance has a maximum unemployment payment
petiod of three months, which was reflected in the analysis.

Disabllity, unemployment and merchandlse proteciion, price protection and stolen cards {credit cards
only}

The standard actuarial projection technique of payment per claim finalised (PPCF} wes adopted in the
determination of the central astimate of the oulstanding claims liability for this rsk, where claims are generally
finalised with the payment of a single lump sum amount. This involves estimating the number of future claim
finalisations and average claim sizes. The number of future finalisations was based on analysls of claim reporis,
finalisations. The average claim size was based on the payments made on claims finalised.

Actuarial assumptions
The key actuarlal assumptions for the deterrination of the outstanding claims are as follows:

2016 2015 2014 2014
Unemployment :
Diaability (excl  (excl credit Disability (exct  Unemployment
crodit cards) cards) credit cards)  (exd credit cards)

Termination rates 45 - 14.0%* 10.0 - 22.0%* 4.5 - 14.5%* 10.6 - 15.0%*
Average welghtad term to selfement (morths) 10,1 2,5. 3.8 10.9 2.5-3.8
MNumber of IBNR. claims acceptad (total) 59 87 77 62
Average Claim Size for IBNR claims $5,000 $1,100 - $1,700 $5,300 $1,200-51,800
Discount rate 2.65%pa 3.54%pa

* Assumption varies according to the future clalm duration

** Varles depending on underwriting period.

15



Halimark General Insurance Company Ltd New Zealand Branch
Notes to the financlal statements
For the year ended 31 December 2015

{continued)
5 Actuarial assumptions and methods (continued)
Actuarial assumptions {continued)
2013 2013 2018 2014 2014 2014
Merchandise Merchandise
protection, . protection,
prica protection Price
and stolen protection and
Disability (credit Unemployment cards (credit Disability (credit Unemployment siolen cards
cards) {cradit cards) cards) cards) (credit cards) (credlt cards)
Average setllementsize  $2,500 - $2,800 $1,700 - $2,500 $250 $2,500-§2,800 $1,700-$2,500 $300
Number of futura
finglisations 56 90 19 61 115 3

Other assumptions

The outstanding claims provision includes a claim handling expense of 13% and an additional 1% for medical
axpenses, with a prudential margin calculated at & 90% probability of adequacy.

Process used to determine actuarial assumptions

A description of the processes used fo determine the above key actuarial assumptions is provided below:

» Terminatiion ratos '
Termination rates by claim duration from the date of incident are adopted and these are used to derive the
prabability of payment on each claim for each menth Into the future. The projection produces the average
welghted term of settlement. ’

+  Average waighted term to settfemnent from the end of the reporting period
The average term fo settlement from reporting date Iz based on ¢laim terminalion analysis performed on the
historical claims expetiences. The claim termination analysls is performed separately for unamployment and
disability.

Termination rate by duration from the date of incident are adopied and thesa are used to derive the
probability of payment on each claim for each month into the future, The projection produces the average
weighied term of seitlement. :

« Averags claim size for IBNR claims {new products oniy)
Far disability and unemployment, the adopted average claim size was based on two types of analysis: the
expected average total duration for each claim type and banefit duration {only for unemployment) multiplied
by the average monthly payment amounit for each claim type, and the historical average claim size. The
average duration was based on the assumed termination rates.

For death and material damage, the average claim size was based on the Jump sum payments made on
finalised claims.

*  Number of IBNR claims (new products only)
The number of IBNR claims was based on an analysis of historical claim numbers for policies in runoff and
an analysis of claim frequency for fines of business currently underwritten,

* Average claim size for sefifaments (cradit cards only)
For credit cards policies, the adopted average claim size was based on historic ratios of claim payments to
numbers of claims finalised.
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Notes to the financial statements

For the year ended 31 December 2015

{continued)

§ Actuarfal assumptions and methods (continued)

Process used to determine actuarial assumptions {continued)

«  Number of future finalisatfons {credit cards only}
For credit cards poficies, the number of future finalisations is based on an analysis of historical claim reports
and finalisation rates, This then enables the future numbers of reports, handled claims and finallsations to be
projected.

*  Expense rafe
The adopted claims handling expsnse rate of 13% {2014: 15%) of the projected gross claim payments, was
determined based on the results of an expense investigation canied out in 2015. An additional 1% {2014:
1%) for medical expenses is applied to Disability claims.

»  Discournt rafe
The central estimates of the outstanding claims liabilities for the periodic benefits were discounted to allow for
future investrrent income aitributable o the liabiliies during the run off period. The discount factor was based
on tha annual risk free rates of retum from the yield curve on New Zealand government bonds.

Sensitivity analysis

The outstanding claims ligbilities included In the reported results are caleulated based on the key actuarial
assumptions as disclosed above. The movement in any of the above key acluarial assumptions will impact the
performance and equity of the hranch. The table below describes how a change in each of the assumptions will
affect the outstanding claims liabilities. The outstanding claims liakilities are on a discounted basis and include
clatm handling expenses and a risk margin at the 90% probability of adegquacy.

Impact of changes in assumptions for old and new products on lotal outstanding claims liability:

Impacton net  Impact on total
outstanding outstanding
clalms labllitles clalms llabllities

Key actuarial assumptions  Changes ($000°s) . (%)

Claim termination rate™ Reduce all termination rates by 10% +134 4.5%

IBNR Increase IBNR ACS by 10% / increase +116 3.9%
number of IBNR claim by 10%

Claims handling expense rate  Increase the claims handling expense +77 2.8%
rate from 13% to 17%

Impact of changes in assumptions for Credit Cards on total outstanding claims liability: S

Impact on Impact on total
outstanding outstanding
claims liabilities claims liabilities

Key actuarial assumptions  Changes {$000’s) (%)

Claim development Increase chain [adder factors by 10% +44 +1.5%

Average settlement size Increase average settlement size by +40 +1.3%
10%

Claims handling expenserate  Increase the claims handling expense +37 +1.2%
rate from 13% te 17%
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For the year ended 31 December 2015

{continued)

5 Actuarial assumptions and methods {(continued)

Changes to key assumptions
At the Decembar 2015 valuation, risk margin assumptions were increased based on:

= APRA's new Industry Review Report as at 30 September 2013 (issued 17 February 2015);
+ Tha cumrent uncartainty regarding unemployment at a macro level; and
« The impact of the Green Beit clalms management program.

8 Financial risk management

This note explains the branch's exposure to financial risks and how these risks could affect the branch's future
financial perfermance. Current year profit or loss information has been included where relevant to add further
context.

{(a) Transiion Risk

Following compietion of the sale of GE's consumer business to KVD Australia Pty Lid, operational risk exposures
are higher as services provided under the Transitional Services Agreement (TSA) with GE are transferred to
Latitude. This will result in significant change across the business and Hallmark General Insurance Company Ltd
New Zealand Branch is actively monitoring and managing these risks,

(b) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss due 1o a counterparty failing to perform their contractual obligations and
principally arises through the branch’s investment in financial instrumanis, receivables from related or other
parties, and claims on reinsurance contracts.

The following policies and procedures are in place (o mitigate the branch's exposure to credit risk:

(i} Financial asseis

The branch's investiment mandate sets out the investment management guidelines approved by the board. The
guidelines establish credit approval authorities, concentration Hmits, and approved investment poitfolio
parameters. These guidelines comply with the GE Capital Corporation Financial Institutions Credit Standards
(GECC FICS) policy which sets ouf concentraiion limits and additional portiolio parameters. The Company wil
continue to adept the GECC FICS policy untll a new Investment Policy is approved by the Board in 2016,
Management conducts a regular review of the investment haoldings, compliance is monitored and exposures or
breaches are reported to the board. The mandate is reviewed regularly for pertinence and for changes in the risk
environment.

The branch only invesis with counterparties that have a credit rating of at least A1/A from Standard & Poor's
{S&P). Where a counterparty changes rating to below A1/A after acquisition, management will continue to review
its holding in those counterparties and divest as deemed appropriate. The branch further limits its exposure o
credit risk by setfing individual exposure limits. There is no significant concentration of credit risk and
management does not expeci any counterparty to fall to meet its obligations.

() Reinsurance assels

Reinsurance is placed with counterpariies within the guidelines of tha reinsurance management strategy (ReMS).
Counterparties must have an S&P credit rating of at least A. The branch further sets its exposure to credit risk by
seffing individual exposure llmits. At the end of each reporting period, management performs an assessment of
creditworthiness of reinsurers and updates the ReMS. '
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{continued)

6 Financial risk management (continued)

(b} Creditrisk {continued}

(iii) Trads and other receivables

The branch's maximum cradit risk exposure at balance date is limited to the carmrying amount of the financlal
assets as stated in the statement of financial position. The branch does not have a significant concentration of
credit risk with any counterparty, other than related parfies {ses note 12).

The table below shows the bramch's maximum exposure to credit risk at balance date.

Non- Non-
investment Investment Total nelther
Inveatment grade grade past due nor Pastdue or

grade satisfactory unsafisfactory Impalred impalred Total
2015 $'000 $'000 - $'900 $'000 $'000 $'000
Financial assets
Cash and cash .
equivatants 40,483 - - 40,463 - 40,493
Trade and other
recgivables - 134 - 134 - 134
Total cradit risk
exposure 40,493 134 - 40,827 - 40,627

Non- Non-
investmant investment Total neither
Investment grade grade past due nor Pastdue or
grade satisfactory unsatisfactory Impalred Impalred Total

2014 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'0049 $'000 $'000
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 40,002 - - 40,002 - 44,002
Trade and other :
receivables - 291. - 201 - 291
Total credit risk exposure 40,002 291 N 40,293 - 40,293

* A receiveble is deemed satisfactary when management is satisfled the obligor has the capacity to maet iis
financial obligations,

The table below classiiies the financlal assets of the branch by counterparty credit rating.

AAA AA A BREB Not rated Total
2018 $'000 $'000 $'000 $°o00 $'000 $'000
Financial Assets
Cash - 40,493 - - 40,493
Trade and other receivables® - - - 134 134
Total credit risk exposure - 40,493 - 134 40,627
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Notes to the financial statemants
For tha year ended 31 December 2015

(continuad)

6 Financial risk management (continued)
{b) Credit risk {continsed)

AAA AA A BBB Not rated Total
2014 $'000 $'000 £'000 $'000 $°000 £000
Financial Assots .
Cash - - 40,002 - - 40,002
Trade and other receivables” - - - - 281 29
Total credit risk exposure = . - 40,002 - 291 40,2593

* No receivables are past due or impaired at balance date (2014: Nil).
{¢) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the branch will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due, The
branch's objective and funding strategy seeks to ensure liquidity and diversity of funding sources to meet actual
and contingent liabilities in both stable and adverse market conditions.

The branch's liquidity Is primarily monitorad through the production of the statement of cash flows for board
review. Periodic review of the maturity profile of the branch's financial assets and liabifities is performed to ensure
sufficlent iquidity is maintained.

The following is an analysis of the maturity profile of undiscounted contractual cash flows assecliated with the
branch's financial liabilities at balance date, excluding insurance llabllities.

Uptoa Over 5

year 1-2 years 2-5years years No tarm Total
2015 $°000 £'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Trade and other payables 131 - - - - 131
Cutstanding claims liabilities 2,234 544 224 - - 3.002
Net principal Habilities 2,365 544 224 - - 3,133
2014
Trade and other payables 443 - - - - 443
Qutstanding claims liabilities 2,341 581 211 - - 3,133
Net principal liabilities 2,784 581 211 - - 3,576

The hranch's financial assets and liabllities are carried in the stalement of financlal position at amounts that
approximate fair value.
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{continued)

6 Financial risk management (continued)

(d) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of its financial instruments or future cash flows will decrease due to
changes [n external economic variables such as interest rates, currency rates and equity prices.

The hoard Is responsible for developing and monitoring the risk management policies of the branch in relafion 1o
market risk. The branch’s [nvestment activities follow the GECC FICS policy. The GECC FICS policy document
outlines the level of acceptable market risk, including counterparty ratings and exposure levels that apply to the
investment activities of branch's within the GECC Group. The Company will continue to adapt the GECC FICS
policy until a new Investment Policy is approved by the Board in 2016

() Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the value of recegnised assets and liabilities or the cash flows from possible future
transactions, that are denominated in a currency, other than that of the functional currency, will decrease due to
changes In market exchange rates.

The branch has no foreign currency exposure at balance date that is considered material.

(i) Interest rale risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the vaiue of financial instruments will fluctuate as a result of changes in market
interest ratas.

The following table analyses the impact of a reasonable possible movement in market interest rates on the
branch’s operating resuits.

Change Impacton

Carrying in profit or
amount variables less Impact on equity Total
Uptoa Over 5
year 1-2years 2-5 years yours
2015 $'000 % $'000 $000 000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Financial
assets
Short term
deposits 39126 {1Y% (391) {282) - - - (282)
39,126 (391) (282) - - - {282)
Change Impacton — .
Carrying in profit or
amount variables Joss impact on squity Total
Uptoa Qver 5
year 1-2years 2-5years years
2014 $'000 % $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $000 $'000
Financial
assets
Short term
deposits 38,084 (1)% (381) (274) - - - 274)
33,084 {381) {274) - - - 274)
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{continued)

6 Financial risk management (continued)

(d) Market risk (¢continued)
{8} Interest rate risk (continued)

This analysis is performed on the same basis for 2014 and assumes that all other variables remain the same.

7 Capital management
Capital consists of retained earnings.

" The branch's capital manzgement strategy plays a centrat role in managing capital risk arising from the business
activities of the branch, providing an appropriate level of capital to protect policyholders' interests and satisfy
regulators. The strategy seeks to ensure sufficient capital levels ars maintained in both stzble and adverse
market condltions.

The branch has adopted a target surplus policy to assist the board and management to manage its capital
position. The target surplus level has been set with reference 1o a range of risks and possible adverse scenarios
faced by the branch.

The branch has net assets in excess of the adopted target surplus requiremant, reflecting its curvent strong
capital position. :

In addition to the branch's target surplus policy, external capital requirements are set and regulated by the
Australian Prudential Regulation Authority (APRA). The branch calculates its capital position according i the
relevant Prudential Standards which ensuras sufficient capital is maintained to meet policyholder obligations. An
insurer's capital base is expected to be adequate for the size, business mix, complexity and risk profile of its
business.

H is the branch's policy to hold capital levels in excess of those required by APRA according to its target sumplus
policy, the capltal level is regularly monitared to minimise the risk of a regulatory breach.

For detailed informaticn on the branch's capital pasition and the capital requirements of APRA, refer note 7{b).
{a) Risk management
Insurance contracts

An insurance contract is a contracl ‘under which the insurer accepts significant insurance risk from the
policyholder by agraeing to compensate the policy holder for a specified uncertaln future event non-spedific to the
policy holder that will adversely affect them. Insurance risk is other than financial risk.

The significance of insurance risk under any one contract is determined by the uncertainty surrcunding the
probability and iming of the insured event occurring, and the magnitude of its effect. Insurance risk Is assessed
by the branch at a contract level on its inception and is periodically reassassad as the risk may vary during the
pericd of insurance cover,

The majority of direct Insurance contracts written are entered into on a standard form basis. There are no special
-terms and conditions in any non-standerd contracts that have a material impact on the financial statements.

The policies written consists mainly of consumer cradlt insurance.
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(continued)

7 Capital management {continued)

Insurance risk management

Insurance risk management is the assessment and guantlfication of the likellhood and financial impact of events
that may require setflament by tha insurer; and the ability of the branch to mitigate the financial impact of these
events on iis operating results,

In accordance with Prudential Standards CPS 220 Risk Management and GPS 230 Reinsurance Management
for General Insurers issusd by APRA, the board and senior management of the branch bhave developed,
implemented and maintained a2 sound and prudent risk management strategy (RMS) and a reinsurance
manugement strategy (ReMS).

The RMS and ReMS Idenfify the branch's policies, procadures, processes and controls that address all known
material risks, financial and non-financial, arsing from the business. Annually, the board certifies to APRA that
adequate strategies have been put in place to monitor those risks, that the branch has systems in place to ensure
compliance with legislative and prudential requirements, and that the board has satlsfied itself as to the
compliance with the RMS and ReMS,

Specific key components of the RMS and ReMS are detailed further below.

(i} Underwriting strategy

The board has developed an underwriting strategy to ensure that the branch has the ability to mest the insurance
needs of the policy holders and {o ensure the ability to pay benefits and claims whan due. The strategy Inveives
the Identification of risks by type, impact and likelihood and involves the application of mathematical modslling to
determine that products are appropriately priced.

(M Reinsurance siralegy

A conservative approach Is taken in determining the level of risk appetite appropriate for the branch and where
deemed approprigte will spread the risk associated with the insured events according to is RaMS. All
reinsurance treaties are subject to analytical and statfstical medelling to ensure that they offer a sufficient level of
cover for the identified exposures whilst in alignment with the ReMS of the branch.

(i) Claims management

Strict claims management procedures ensure the timely and accurate payment of claims in accordance with
pulicy conditions. Claim outcomes are monitored to track the actual versus expected experionce of the porifolio,
with feedback delivered to underwriting and product development.

(v} Conceniration of insurance risk

The branch's portfolio of products and pollcy holders is sufficiently diversified such that there is no material
concentration of insurance risk.

{b) Capital adequacy

The branch is required to heold prudential reserves, over and above the genereal insurance contract liabilities, as a
buffer against adverse future experience and poor investment returns. Life and General Insurers are required to
follow the relevant Prudential Standards as prescribed by APRA. The required level of capital for regulatory
purposes (the prudential capitai amount, or PCA) is intended to take account of the full range of risks to which a
general insurer is exposed and a general company must ensure that the general company has, at all imes, a
capital base in excess of lts PCA (plus any additional amount as required by APRA).

The excess of the branch’s capilal base over the PCA a5 at 31 December 2015 was $84.9 million (2014:363.7
million).
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7 Capital management (continued)
{b} Capltal adequacy {continued)

In addificn to the regulatory capital requirements, the branch maintains a target surplus providing an additional
capital buffer against adverse events.,

2013 2014

$000 $000
(a) Capital base 117,525 101,282
(b) Prescribed capital amount 32,686 37,603
Capital in excess of prescribed capital amount = (a) - (b} 84,040 63,679
Capital adequacy muliiple = (a)/(k} 3.61 2.69

2015 2014
$'000 §'000

Capital Base:
Net Assets 110,926 94,068
Reguiatory adjustment applied in the calculation of Tier 1 capital 6,598 6,314
Common Equity Tier 1 Capital 117,525 101,282
Prescribed capital amount: .
Insurance Risk Charge 9,643 11,533
Insurance Concentration Risk Charge 19,088 21,944
Asset Risk Charge 5,340 4,340
Asset Concentration Risk Charge - -
Operafional Risk Charge 2,330 2,898
Aggragation bensfit {3,816} (3,210)
Prescribed capital amount 32,585 37,603

Excess technlcal provisions

The liability required by GPS 110 for prudential reporting purposes differs from accounting purposes. As
dascribed In note 13{p) the branch applies risk margins to the central estimate of net outstanding claims to
achieve a 90% confidence level. GPS 110 requires a prudential margin with a sufficiency of 75%.
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{continued)

Unrecognised items

This section of the notes provides information about items that are not recognised in the financial sisterments as
they do not (yet) satisfy the recognition criteria. )

8 Commitments and contingencies
As at 31 Decamber 2015, the branch had no contingencies { 2014: nil).
9 Matters subsecquent to the end of the financial year

No matter or circurnstance has arisen since 31 December 2015 that has significantly affected or may significantly
affect:

+ the branch's operations; or
« the resulis of those operatlons; or
« the branch's state of affairs.

Other information

This section of tha notes includes other information that must be disclosed to comply with the accounting
standarde and other pronouncements, but that is not immediately related to individual line items In the financlal
statements.

10 Remuneration of auditors

No remuneration to auditors has been racognised; this expense was incurred by the head office of the branch.

11 Key management personnel discliosures

Any remuneration received by directors was received in their capacity as directors of Hallmark General Insurance
Company Ltd.

12 Related party transactions

(a) Transactions with related parties

The following trangactions occurred with related parties:

2015 2014
$ 3
Managemeant fees pafd to/{received from):
Hallmark Genera! Insurance Company Lid 6,047,374 5,817,486
Advances from parenf company
Payments to Hallmark General Insurance Company Ltd - (5,963,500}
Commission paid fa:

GE Finance and Insurance NZ 2,210,361 3,189,973
Latitude Financial Services Ltd - NZ 238,820 -
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{continued)
12 Related party transactions {continued)
{b) Outstanding halances with ralated parties
2015 2014
$ $

Receivablas/{payables) ‘

Hallmark General [nsurance Company Ltd : {1,331,143) {B42,076)

GE Finance and Insurance NZ - 413,082

Latitude Financial Services Lid - NZ 1,262,851 -

No provigions for doubiful debts have been raised in relation to any outstanding balances, and no expense has
been recognised in respect of bad or doubtfu) debis due fror related partises.

13 Summary of significant accounting policies
General Information

Hallmark General Insurance Company Ltd New Zealand Branch (the branch) was registered in New Zealand on
the 5th April 2011, undar the Companies Act 1993. These are the financial statements of the New Zealand
branch of Halimark General Insurance Company Ltd (the Company).

The parent entity of Halimark General Insurance Company Ltd is Latitude Personal Finance Pty Ltd. The ultimate
parent entity of Halimark General Insurance Company Lid is KVD Ausiralia Holdco Ply Lid.

The branch is a for-profit entity and is primarily involved in the undemrn'tirig of general insurance risks.

The financial statements were authorised for issue by the directors on 17 March 2016.
(a) Basis of preparation

Statement of complfance

This general purpose financial report covers the branch as a single eniity and has been prepared in accordance
with New Zealand equivalents to International Financial Reporting Siandards {NZ IFRS).

This financial report complies with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and New Zealand equivalents to International Financial
Reporling Standards {NZ IFRS). Tha branch i$ & reporting entity for the purpose of the Financiat Reporting Act
1993 and #s financlat statements comply with that Act.

Basis of measurement
The finandal statements have been prepared on a fair value basis with cerlain exceplions as described in the
accounting policies below.

Changes in accounting policias and disclosures
There has been no chang in accounting policies for the current financlal year.

(b} Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. The branch recognises
revenue from non-insurance activities when it is probable that the economic banefits will flow to the branch and
the revenue amourt can be reliably measured. The branch bases its estimates on historical resulls, taking into
consideration the type of customer, the type of iransaction and the specifics of each arrangement. In addition, the
following specific recognition criteria apply to revenus strearns;
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13 Summary of significant accounting policles (continued)
(b} Revenue recognition (continued)

(i} Premium revenus

Premium revenue comprises amounts charged fo policyholders (direct premium} for insurance contracts,
excluding stamp duties and faxes collected on behalf of third parties.

Premium revenue is recognised in the profit or loss when it has been eamed. It is recognised as earned from the
date of attachment of risk {generally the date a contract is agreed to but may be earlier if persuasive evidence of
an arrangement exisis) over the period of the related insuranca contracts In accordance wiih the pattern of the
incidence of risk expected under the contracts, The pattem of the risks underwritten is generally matched by the
passing of ime but where time does not approximate the pattern of risk, previous claims experience Is used to
derive the incidence of risk.

Premium for unclosad business (business written close to reporting date where attachment of risk Is prior to
reporting date and thers is insufficient information to accurately identify the business) is brought to account based
on previous experience with due allowance for any changes Tn the pattern of new business and renewals.

The unearned portion of premium is recognised within unearned premium lisbilities in the statement of financial
position.

() Investment income

All investment income is recognised as revenue on an accruals basis. Interest income is recognised on a time
proportion basis using the simple interest method. Assets are designated at fair value through profit and loss and
the related net realised and unrealised galng and losses are Included in the profit or loss as invesiment revenue.

{c) Clalms expenses

The branch's claims liability is measurad as the present value of expecied future payments rolating to clalms
incurred at the reporiing date. The expacted future payments include those estimates in relation to claims
incurred but not enocugh reported (IBNER'S) and clalms Incurred but pot reported (IENR's) based on past
experience.

Clzims incured aif relate to providing services, including the bearing of risk, and are accordingly treated as
expanses in the profit or loss. Claims expenses represent total claim payments made during the year adjusted for
the movamaent in the outstanding claims iability.

- The claims liakility is measured based on the advice of valuations performed by the appeinted actuary whose key
assumptions are outlined in note 5.

{d} Other expenses
Other expenses are recognised in the profit or 10s$ on an accruals basis.
(e) Outwards reinsurance pramium

Premlum ceded 1o relhsurers [s recognised as an expense in accordance with the pattem of reinsurance service
received. Accordingly, a porticn of outwards reinsurance premium is treated at the reporting date as deferred
reinsurance expenss. Reinsurance recoveries on claims incurred are recognised as revenue.

(f) Deferred acquisition costs

Costs, which vary with and are primarily related to the production of new business, have been deferred to the
extent that such cosis are deemed recoverable from future profits. Such costs primarily Include commissions,
Thesa costs are amortised in proporiion to premiums over the estimated lives of the policies. A write down fo
recoverable amount is recognised where the present value of expectad future claims (Including seftlement costs)
in relation to business written fo the end of the reporting period exceeds related unearned preamiums Jess the
deferred acquisition costs.
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13 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

(g) Income tax

The income tax expensa for the period is the tax payable on the cutrent period's taxable income based on the
notional income tax rate.

Taxation basis

. As the branch is a non-resident, for tax purposes, general insurer in New Zaaland it is taxed at 10% of its New
Zealand sourced gross premium income. Deductions for expenditure are not sllowed. A non-resident withhoiding
tax of 10% or approved issuer levy of 2% applies to any New Zealand sourced Interest income on investmenis.

‘(h) Cash and cash equivalents

For tha purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and eash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits held
at call with financial institutions and other short-term, highly liguid investments with original maturities of three
manihs or less that are readily convertilie to known amounts of cash.

() Loans and other recelvables

All premium and other receivables are recognised at the amounts receivable as these amounts are genarally due
for seitlement within 30 days and less, where applicable, any provision for doubtful debts. Collectability of
premium and other receivables is reviewad on an ongoing basls. Debts which are known fo be uncollectible are
written off in the pericd in which thay are identified.

(i} Reinsurance and other recoveries raceivable

Reinsurance and other recoveries receivabla on paid claims, reported clalms not yet paid and IBNR's are
recognised as revenue. Recoveries receivable are assessed in a manner similar to the assessment of the liability
for outstanding claims and policy fiabilities. ‘

(k) Classificatlon of insurance contracts

Contracts under which the branch accepts significant insurance risk from the policyholder or another party by
agreeing fo compensate the policyholder or other beneficlary if a specified uncertain future event adversely
affects the policyholder or other beneficiary, are classified as insurance contracts. The risks assoclated with
Insurance contracts are detailed further in note 5.

{1) Assets backing general insurance liabilities

Hallmark General Insurance Company Ltd has established a target capital surplus policy to ensure assets are
avallable to meet insurance liabilities.

{m) Financial assets

The branch has elected to designate all its financial assets backing insurance policies at fair value through profit
and loss conslstent with the provisions of NZ 1AS 39 Financlal Instruments; Recognition and Measurement.

Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss and are initially recognised at fair value, excluding
transaction costs, which are expensed in the profit or loss In the period in which they arise. Financial assets are
subsequently measured at fair value at each reporling date with realised and unrealised gaing and lgsses arsing
from changes in the fair value recognised in the profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

Classification

) Short term deposits

Short term deposits are camled at the face value of the amounis deposited as thelr carrying amounts approximate
{o their fair value.
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13 Summary of significant accounting policles {continued)

{m) Financlal assets (continued)

() Untisted fixed interest securilies

Unlisted fixed Interest securities are recorded at amounts based on valuations using rates of interest equivalent
to tha yields obtainable on compareble investments at the &nd of the reporting pariod.

All financial Instruments are required to be further categorised under NZ IFRS 7 Financial Insttumenis;
Disclosures, according to the availability of observable market Inputs used in the measurement of their fair
values, which is detailed further in note 2(g).

{n) !mpalrment of assets

The camying amount of the branch's assets which are in the scope of NZ IAS 36 Impalrment of Assets are
assessed annually for indicators of impairment. If any such indicator exdsts, then the assel's recoverable amount
is estimated.

An impairmant loss is recognised when the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.
Recoverable amount is the higher of an asset'’s fair value less costs of disposal. Impairment losses are
recognised in the profit or loss, unless an asset has previously been re-valued, in which case the impairmant loss
is recognised as a reversal {o the extent of that previous revaluation with any excess recognised through the
profit or loss.

Wheare an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount is increased to the revised estimete of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impalrment been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment I recognised immediately in the profit or loss.

(o} Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the branch prior 1o the end of
the financial year, which are unpaid. The amounts are unsecuréd and are usually paid within €0 days of
recognition.

{p} Qutstanding claims liability

Tha liability for cutstanding clalms covers the expected future payments in relation to claims reported but not yet
paid, IBNR's, IBNER's and the anticipated direct and indirect costs of settling these claims.

The liability for outstanding claims Is subiect to yearly actuarial review. The general approach 1o the actuarial
estimation of cutstanding claims is to analyse all avallable past experionce, Based on this, the expected future
payments are determined and discounted to present value using a risk free rate.

The provision for the outstanding claims liability also contains a risk margin to reflect the inherent uncerlai'nty in
tha central estimate. The risk margin increases the probability that the net liability is adequately provided for to a
90% {2014: 90%) confidence level.

{q) Liability adequacy test

The adequacy of the insurance contract liabflities are evaluated each year, The insurance contract test considers
current estimates of all contractual and related cash flows. i it is determined using best estimate assumptions
that a shortfall exists, It is immediately recognised in the profit or loss. Refer to note 2{e}{v).
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13 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

{r) Unexpired risk liabllity

Provision is made for unexpired risks arising from general insurance business where the expected value of
claims and expenses atiributed to the unexpired periods of policies in force at the end of the reporting period
exceeds the unearned premiums provision in relation fo such policies after the deduction of any deferred
acquisition costs. The provision for unexpired risk is calculated separately by reference to separate classes of
business, which are managed together, after taking into account the relevant investment return.

Unexpired risk liability, if any, remaining after writing off deferred acquisition costs is recognised immediately in
the profit or loss. Refer to note 2(e){v).

(8) Foreign currency translation and functional currency

Funciional and presentation currency

tems Included In the financial statements of the branch are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the branch operates (the functional currency).

Tha financial statements are presented in New Zealand dollars, which is the functiona! and presentation currency
for the branch.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are franslated info the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the fransactions, Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the setlement of such
transactions and from the translation al year end exchange rates of monetary asseis and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are recognised in the profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at falr value in a forgign currency are franslated using the exchange rates
at the date when the falr value was determined.

Translation differences on financdial instruments carried at fair value are reported as part of the falr value gain or
loss.

{t) MNew accounting standards and interpretations

A number of new standards, emendments o standards and interpretations are effective for annwal periods
beginning after 1 January 2015, and have not baen applied in preparing these financial statements. None of
these is expected to have a significant effect on the financial statements of the branch, except for:

- NZ IFRS 9 Financlat Instruments, which becomes mandatory for the branch's 2018 financial statements and
could change the classification and measurement of financial assets. The branch does not plan to adaopt this
standard early and the extent of the impact has not baen datermined.

- NZ IFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers, which becomes mandatary for the Company's 2018
financial statements, provides a new § step model for recognising revenue eamed from a contract with &
customer and will replace the existing NZ IAS 18 Revenue. The Company does not plan to adopt this standard
aarly and the extent of the impact has not been defermined.

{u) Rounding of amounts

Amounts in the financial stetements have been rounded oif {0 the nearest thousand doltars, or in certain cages,
the nearest dollar.
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Directors' Declaration
in the opinion of the directors of Halimark General Insurance Company {.td New Zealand Brarch ("the branch™}:

{a) the financial statements and notes set out on pages 2 to 30 are In accordance with the Financial
Reporiing Act 1993, including:

{0 piving a true and falr view of the branch's financial position 25 at 31 December 2015 and of iis
performance for the financial year ended on that date; and

(b) the financial statements also comply with International Financiat Reporting Standards as disclosed in note
13; and

{c) there are reasonable grounds to believe that the branch will be able to pay its debts a=s and when they
bacoma due and payable.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of directors:

JoAnne Maree Stephenson {Chairnan)
Director

Sydney

17 March 2016

A

Anna Elizabeth Gladman (Managing Diractor)
Direstor

Sydnay
17 March 2016

A
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Independent auditor’s report

To the Shareholders of Hallmark General Insurance Company Ltd
New Zealand Branch

Report on the financial statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Hallmark General Insurance
Company Ltd New Zealand Branch (“the Branch™) on pages 2 to 30. The financial statements
comprise-the Statement of Financial Position as at 31 December 2015, the Statement of Profit
or Loss and Other Comprehensive Incorme, Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of
Cash Flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatery information, for the Branch.

This report is made solely to the Shareholders of the Branch as a body. Our audit work has
been undertaken so that we might state to the Branch’s Sharehclders those matters we are
required to state to them in the auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Branch’s
Shareholders as a body, for our audit work, this report or any of the opinions we have formed.

Directors’ responsibility for the Branch financlal statements

The Directors are responsible on behalf of the Branch for the preparation of the Branch
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting practice in New
Zealand and International Financial Reporting Standards that give a true and fair view of the
matters to which they relate, and for such internal control as the Directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of Branch financial statements that are free frorn material
misstatement whether due to frand or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Branch financial statements based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (New
Zealand). Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Branch financial
staternents are free from material misstatament.

An andit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the Branch financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to franud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditor considers internal control relevant to the Branch’s preparation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the matters so which they relate in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Branch's internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates, as well as evaluating the presentation of the financial statements.
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and aiapropriate to pravide a
basis for our audit opinion. '

Other than in our capacity as éudit_or the firm has no other relationship with, or interest in, the
Branch,

Opinion

In our opinion the financial statements on pages 2 to 3¢

* comply with generally accepted accounting practice _in New Zwl@d; .
* comply with International Financial Reporting Standards;

* give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Branch as at 31 December 2015
and of the financial performance and cash flows of the Branch for the year then ended.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

In accordance with the requirements of sections 16(1)(d} and 16(1)(c} of the Financial
Reporting Act 1993, we report that:

* we have obtained all the information and explanations that we have required; and
s in our opinion, proper accounting records have been kept by Hallmark Generzal Insurance

Company Ltd New Zealand Branch as far as appears from our examination of those
records.

e
KPMG

Sydney
17 March 2016
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The Board of Directors 29 March 2016
Hallmark General Insurance Company Ltd

Level 4, 99 Walker Street

North Sydney NSW 2060

Hallmark General Insurance Company Ltd:
Appointed Actuary signoff of financial statements and financial condition as at
31 December 2015 for New Zealand reporting purposes

Dear Directors

Hallmark General Insurance Company Ltd ("HGIC™) is an Australian authorised insurer regulated by the
Australian Prudential Regulatory Authority (“APRA™) and has a licence issued by the Reserve Bank New
Zealand ("RBNZ").

On 19 September 2014, HGIC appointed me, Richard Yee of Ernst & Young to be HGIC's Appointed
Actuary. The Appointed Actuary role is as described by the Insurance Act 1973, related Prudential
Standards and Prudential Practice Guides current at 31 December 2015, and by the New Zealand
Insurance (Prudential Supervision) Act 2010 (the Act). | have no relationship with HGIC other than being its
Appointed Actuary.

It is the responsibility of the Appointed Actuary to provide advice to the Board of a general insurer on the
value of its insurance liabilities and the preparation of the actuarial information contained in its financial
statements. The Appointed Actuary must provide written advice to the Board of the insurer on the value of
insurance liabilities in accordance with APRA's Prudential Standard GPS320, Actuarial and Related
Matters.

As part of my responsibilities, | have produced a report on HGIC's insurance liabilities and financial
condition, the Financial Condition Repart (FCR), as at 31 December 2015, dated 9 March 2016. The scope
of the FCR is to provide the Board and management with an objective assessment of the financial condition
of the Australian and New Zealand business within HGIC as at 31 December 2015. The FCR identifies and
assesses the material risks facing HGIC and includes discussion of relevant risk mitigants.

| have relied upon the general completeness and accuracy of this data and information supplied by HGIC
without independent verification. However, | have reviewed the information for reasonableness and
consistency with my knowledge of the financial services industry.

The RBNZ has exempted HGIC from compliance with their Solvency Standard for Non-life Insurance
Business. This exemption has been granted subject to various conditions, including obligations of the
Appointed Actuary. These obligations are addressed helow. Where relevant and appropriate, | have
commented on total HGIC Company level resulis and also separately in relation to the results of the New
Zealand Branch of HGIC.

Financial Statements - HGIC Company

Section 77 of the Act requires a review by the Appointed Actuary of the actuarial information in the
financial statements of the company and in particular:

d. Unearned premiurm liability and liability adequacy test
b. Net outstanding claims liability

¢. Reinsurance and any other recovery assets

Liability limited by a scheme approved
under Professional Standards Legislation
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d. Deferred acquisition cost or deferred fee revenue

e. Any other information deemed by the Appointed Actuary to warrant actuarial review for the
purpose of profit or solvency reporting

Section 78 of the Act requires that the Appointed Actuary prepare a report in respect of the review required
under Section 77. | confirm that this FCR and my ILVR meets the requirements of section 78 of The Act, and
contains my advice regarding the net premium liabilities, liability adequacy test, net outstanding claims
liabilities, reinsurance and any other recovery assets, and deferred acquisition costs.

| have previously reviewed the earning patterns adopted by HGIC and consider them to be appropriate. For
the current ILVR | have alsao checked the unearned premium calculation performed by HGIC for certain
product types and the calculations appear to be reasonable.

In my opinion and from an actuarial perspective:

a. The actuarial information contained in the HGIC financial statements has been appropriately
included in those statements; and

b. The actuarial information has been used appropriately in the preparation of the HGIC financial
statements.

| have abtained all information and explanations that | have required. | am not aware of any other information
that warrants actuarial review for the purpose of profit or solvency reporting.

Financial Condition Report

The Appointed Actuary must prepare a Financial Condition Repert which must:

a. ldentify and describe the material risks (of which it is reasonable to expect the appointed actuary to be
aware) facing a licensed insurer that, in the appointed actuary's opinion, pose a threat to the licensed
insurer's ability to meet its solvency requirements now and in the future, and where practicable
quantify such risks

b. Comment on the steps taken or proposed by the licensed insurer to address the risks identified in (@)

¢.  Comment separately on the New Zealand business, these comments can be in line with Australian
requirements for financial condition reports

d. Advise the licensed insurer on whether in the Appointed Actuary's opinicn, the licensed insurer needs
to consider reporting to the RBNZ under Section 24 of The Act, taking into account the licensed
insurer’s forward-iooking assessment of the solvency standard and the appointed actuary's assessment
of the licensed insurer's business plans, its enterprise risk management practices and the external
environment.

The Appointed Actuary in the financial condition report must comment on:

a. The solvency position of the insurer if a catastrophe or extreme event, such as outlined in the
Catastrophe Risk Capital Charge section of the Non-Life Standard, were to occur in New Zealand.

b. Any difference in the financial condition of the New Zealand Branch in comparison with the insurer as a
whote, which might have implications if the two were separated as a result of requlatory action or
litigation.

The FCR identifies and assesses the material risks facing HGIC and includes mitigating factors addressing
those risks and therefore meets the requirements of Section 56(d) of the Act. The capital within HGIC is
equally accessible by both the Australian and New Zealand operations.

HGIC is in a very strong financial position as at 31 December 2015, with available capital exceeding the
target surplus, Capital requirements are expected to be met over the year and also in subsequent years,
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and hence no reporting under Section 24 of the Act is required. in my opinion HGIC is maintaining a
solvency margin consistent with the requirements under section 21(2) (b} of the Act. HGIC is not a life
insurer. As such no opinion under Section 78¢h) of the Act is required.

This strong position means that HGIC would be able to withstand a catastrophe or extreme event similar to
the Catastrophe Risk Capital Charge.

The Australian and Mew Zealand operations of HGIC are managed in conjunction and | am not aware of any
differences in the financial condition of the New Zealand Branch in comparison with the insurer as a whole
which might have implications if the two were separated.

Yours sincerely,
/Q,./k«_// 7 e

Richard Yee, FIAA, FNZSA
Appointed Actuary, Hallmark General Insurance Company Ltd



